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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
T E®E

On behalf of the board of directors (the "Board” or
“Directors”) of Suncorp Technology Limited (the “Company”),
| present to you the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2010.

During the year of review, the Group focused on providing
assembly services at its subsidiary, Meizhou Guo Wei Electronics
Co., Ltd. in Meizhou, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), and the sales and marketing of residential telephone
products under its licence for the Motorola brand.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group's turnover
amounted to approximately HK$178.7 million, compared
to HK$50.5 million reported in 2009, it was an increase of
approximately 254.2%. Approximately 34.8% of the Group's
turnover resulted from the provision of assembly services,
and the remaining 65.2% from the sales of telephone
products. Gross profit from operation for the year under
review was approximately HK$14.2 million, compared to a
gross profit of approximately HK$4.7 million reported in 2009,
representing an increase of approximately 203%. The net loss
was approximately HK$18.6 million, in which approximately
an income of HK$7.7 million was generated from non-
operating items, such as fair value change on derivative
financial instruments, the recognition of the effective interest
expenses on the convertible loan notes and other non-recurring
expenses.

In an effort to broaden our income base and to improve our
financial performance, | am pleased to announce that Motorola
has selected the Company as its exclusive licensee for corded
and cordless telephone for residential and office in Europe,
Russian Federation, Middle East, Africa and Asia (including
China, India, South East Asia and Australia). The Group has
changed its activities to include design, sales and marketing
activities of telephone products under the Motorola brand in
the above territories. The prospects for this activity are good
and provide a positive addition to the Group’s assembly service.
The Board would continue to explore business opportunities
which could complement the Group’s current telephone related
business.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
T E®E

On behalf of the board, | would like to take this opportunity
to thank our customers, suppliers and staff for their continued
support, and to assure shareholders and bondholders that we
will work tirelessly to improve the Company’s performance.

On behalf of the Board

Zhu Guangping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2011
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN®WREDMN

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$178.7 million which represents
an increase of 254.2% as compared to the corresponding
figure for the year ended 31 December 2009. The gross profit
for the year under review was approximately HK$14.2 million
as compared to approximately HK$4.7 million for the previous
year.

During the year, the Group focused on providing assembly
services at its subsidiary, Meizhou Guo Wei Electronics Co.,
Ltd. in Meizhou in the PRC, and the sales and marketing
of residential telephone products under its licence for the
Motorola brand. The turnover and gross profit for the year
ended 31 December 2010 are set out as below:

Turnover B
Gross Profit/(loss) ER/(F8) 8%

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Directors consider that the design, manufacture and sale
and provision of assembly services of telephones and related
equipment is the only major reportable operating segment
of the Group. Additional disclosure in relation to segment
information is not presented as the Directors assess the
performance of the only major reportable segment based on
the consistent information as disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The increase in current ratio from 28.8% to 56.3% was mainly
due to the increase in trade, bill and other receivables, bank
balance and cash under current assets, and the decrease in the
conversion options embedded in the convertible loan notes
under current liabilities.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had cash on hand of
approximately HK$25.4 million, net current liabilities of
approximately HK$50.1 million, total assets of approximately
HK$74.5 million and shareholders’ deficit of approximately
HK$40.2 million.

The Group has HK$5.7 million bank borrowings as at 31
December 2010 (2009: Nil)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN®WREDMN

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2010, no shares were
issued upon the exercise of share options by option holders.

The movements of the convertible bonds during the year ended

31 December 2010 are set out below:

Description

B

Opening balance as at
1 January 2010

Three-year 0.5% coupon
unsecured convertible bonds
in an aggregate amount of
HK$50,000,000 (a)

Three-year 0.5% coupon
unsecured convertible notes
in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$26,200,000 (b)
and HK$70,000,000 (c)
respectively
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2,170,788,925

29 March 2010 125,000,000 2,295,788,925
“T-TF=A-1NH

29 March 2010 2,000,000 2,297,788,925
“Z-TF=A-thAH

14 April 2010 268,000,000 2,565,788,925
—T-TEMATMEA

16 April 2010 57,000,000 2,622,788,925
—Z-TEMA+RH

4 May 2010 43,000,000 2,665,788,925
—Z-ZFRANA

28 June 2010 15,000,000 2,680,788,925
“E-ZERAZTAH

15 July 2010 50,000,000 2,730,788,925
—“Z-ZT5tA+hA

29 July 2010 2,000,000 2,732,788,925
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL STRUCTURE (continued)

(a)

As at 31 December 2010, the convertible bonds had been
fully converted into conversion shares.

(b) As at 31 December 2010, the Company had HK$500,000

outstanding convertible notes (to be converted at the
conversion price of HK$0.10 per share) under the three
year 0.5% coupon unsecured convertible notes in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$26,200,000 due 2012.
Upon full conversion of the bonds, a total of 5,000,000
new conversion shares will be issued.

As at 31 December 2010, the Company had
HK$40,000,000 outstanding convertible notes (to be
converted at the conversion price of HK$0.10 per share)
under the three year 0.5% coupon unsecured convertible
notes in an aggregate principal amount of HK$70,000,000
due 2013. Upon full conversion of the bonds, a total of
400,000,000 new conversion shares will be issued.

EXCHANGE RATE

All sales in the current year were denominated in RMB
and USD, whilst the majority of the Group’s expenses were
denominated in RMB and HK dollars.

INVESTMENTS

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries

and associated companies during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN®WREDMN

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 28 February 2007, the Company was served with an
Amended Writ issued and filed by Uniden Corporation
(“Uniden”) and Uniden Hong Kong Limited (“Uniden HK")
on 1 February 2007 against the Company, SunCorp Partners
Limited and certain of the Company’'s existing and former
directors, alleging that certain misrepresentations had been
made by the Company and certain of its existing and former
directors, and that the Company had breached the warranties
of the subscription agreement, and the terms of the business
alliance agreement and the master production agreement. On
the basis of these allegations, Uniden sought, inter alia, (i) a
recession of the subscription agreement, pursuant to which
Uniden HK acquired 82,000,000 new shares in the capital of
the Company, and the consequential return of the relevant
subscription money of approximately HK$143,500,000; (ii)
damages for misrepresentation or breach of warranty; (iii)
damages for breach of the business alliance agreement and the
master production agreement; and (iv) the legal costs of this
action, plus interest.

On 6 February 2007 and 20 March 2007, the Company issued
announcements in relation to these legal proceedings and the
termination by the Company of the business alliance agreement
and the master production agreement. The directors of the
Company strongly refute and intend to vigorously contest
the allegations made by Uniden and Uniden HK, and are of
the opinion, having taken legal advice, that the action can be
successfully defended.

On 2 August 2007, the Company served a defense and a
counterclaim against Uniden and Uniden HK for damages of
approximately HK$354,000,000 (plus interest) based on the
breaches by Uniden and Uniden HK of the terms of the master
production agreement and the business alliance agreement.
Uniden served its reply and defence to the counterclaim on 13
November 2007.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

On 31 July 2009, the Company announced that the above legal
proceedings were settled on 31 July 2009 on terms whereby,
amongst other things, (i) all claims brought by Uniden and
Uniden HK against the Company, SunCorp Partners Limited
and certain of the Company’s existing and former directors
were dismissed; (ii) all claims brought by the Company against
Uniden were dismissed; (iii) no party to the legal proceedings
made any payment to any other party to the legal proceedings;
and (iv) each party bore its own legal costs and expenses. An
order formally dismissing the Court proceedings were made by
the Court on 4 August 2009.

EMPLOYEES

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the
performance of employees with reference to the market
condition. The Board may exercise its discretion to grant
share options to the executive Directors and employees as an
incentive to their contribution to the Group. During the year
under review, no share options had been granted by the Group
to the employees in accordance with the share option scheme.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

ANFEE Y

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHU Guangping (Chairman)

Mr. Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON
Mr. IP Chi Ming

Mr. SO Chung Shing

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Dr. HUI Ka Wah Ronnie, JP
Mr. HO Kwan Tat

Mr. WONG Kean Li

Mr. LO Chi Ming, Anthony
Ms. Lu Bei Lin

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. WONG Sin Fai, Cynthia

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISORS

Hong Kong:

Morrison & Foerster
Bermuda:

Conyers Dill & Pearman

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
East West Bank, Hong Kong Branch

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Rooms 3001-5, 30/F.
China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

MANUFACTURING CENTRE IN THE PEOPLE’S
REPUBLIC OF CHINA

Meizhou Guo Wei Suncorp Electronics Co., Ltd.
AD1 Section, The Economey Exploitation Area
Meizhou, Guangdong Province

The People’s Republic of China

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HM 08

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRARS
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.suncorptech.com.hk

STOCK CODE
1063
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
EEHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ZHU Guangping, aged 44, was appointed as the Chairman
of the Company effective 23 April 2009. He is responsible for
the Group's corporate strategic planning, overall management
and business development. He holds a Bachelor Degree in
engineering from Jilin University of Technology, the PRC.

Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON, aged 61, is responsible
for the Group’s overall marketing and product development
strategy. He is a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing.

IP Chi Ming, aged 49, has over 20 years of experience in
trading and marketing in the food products industry as well as
extensive working experience in corporate strategic planning,
overall management, business development and sales and
marketing of which approximately 10 years' experience as
director of listed companies. At present, Mr. Ip is the non-
executive director of Chaoda Modern Agriculture (Holdings)
Limited, of which is the company listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is also
a non-executive director of Asian Citrus Holdings Limited, of
which is the company listed on the Stock Exchange and the
Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange.

So Chung Shing, aged 34, obtained his Bachelor Degree
in Risk Management and Business Administration from the
Lingnan University in Hong Kong and a Graduate Certificate of
Technology Management from the University of Queensland in
Australia. Mr. So has over 10 years' experience in technology
development, finance and manufacturing. He is currently
the chairman and chief executive officer of Titanium Group
Limited, a company traded at the Over-the-Counter Bulletin
Board in the United States of America. Mr. So is also managing
and acting as responsible officer for two insurance agencies
which are owned by his family investment group.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. HUI Ka Wah, Ronnie, JP, aged 47, graduated from the
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Medicine and
Bachelor of Surgery and holds the Diploma of Child Health at
Royal College of Physicians & Surgeons in Ireland and at Royal
College of Physicians & Surgeons of Glasgow. He is a member
of the Royal College of Physicians of the United Kingdom,
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine
(Paediatrics) and the Hong Kong College of Paediatricians.
He has been practicing as a registered medical practitioner in
Hong Kong since 1987 and has been registered as Specialist in
Pediatrics since 2001. He is a CFA (Chartered Financial Analyst)
Charterholder and also holds the degree of Master of Business
Administration conferred by Universitas 21 Global. Dr. Hui is
the corporate marketing director of Quam Securities Limited.
He is also the Chief Financial Officer of Apollo Solar Energy
Technology Holdings Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange).
Dr. Hui is the Executive Director of Town Health International
Holdings Company Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange). Dr.
Hui was the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China
Natural Investment Company Limited (formerly known as “Core
Healthcare Investment Holdings Limited”) up to 10 November
2009, the Executive Director of China Gogreen Assets
Investment Limited (formerly known as “Hong Kong Health
Check and Laboratory Holdings Company Limited”) up to 28
August 2009 and the Independent Non-executive Director of
CIAM Group Limited (formerly known as “E2-Capital (Holdings)
Limited”) up to 1 July 2008 and CASH Financial Services Group
Limited up to 27 October 2008 (all are listed on the Stock
Exchange).

HO Kwan Tat, aged 46, is a practicing Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong and is a director of a CPA firm. He
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Ho has extensive experience in accounting
and audit. Mr. Ho is the Independent Non-executive Director
of Midland IC&I Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange). He
was the Independent Non-executive Director of CIAM Group
Limited (formerly E2-Capital (Holdings) Limited) up to 1 July
2008 and The Sun’s Group Limited up to 14 April 2008 (all are
listed on the Stock Exchange).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
EEHE

WONG Kean Li, aged 40, is the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of a technology and early childhood education
company. He holds a Master of Arts degree in Law from
Cambridge University, England. He was the President and
Executive Director of China Renji Medical Group Limited
(formerly Softbank Investment (International) Limited) up to
22 May 2008, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Prior
to that, he was the Vice President, business development of
Hongkong.com Corporation and senior counsel and business
development director of China.com Corporation, after having
been an associate lawyer with the international law firm
Clifford Chance where he specialised in China law as well as
corporate and Internet/technology matters. Mr. Wong is also
the Non-executive Director of Intelligent Edge Technologies
Berhad, a company listed on the Malaysia MESDAQ.

LO Chi Ming, Anthony, aged 63, has extensive working
experience in accounting, finance and commercial fields of
which approximately 10 years’ experience as financial controller
and company secretary of listed companies. Mr. Lo graduated
from Murdoch University, Western Australia with a Bachelor
degree of Commerce. He is a certified public accountant of
Australia, an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (Practising) and The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is also
a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. At present, Mr. Lo is the Managing Director of a
CPA firm.

LU Bei Lin, aged 40, obtained her certificate of completion
in Management of Cultural and Arts Affairs from the Tongji
University. Ms. Lu has over 10 years of experience in the
cultural and hospitality industry in the PRC.

BXHE 4055 A HEBBEERNEHE
RAEIZEFBRITBBE - BHERE
BREBEEXEZBET B - HEFEHR
FrEMARIRECEERESEBARA
A(AIBREERERAAF) 2BER
WITES Z2-_TT/\FLA-+=H
- BER - REEBER/AAMERE
BERBGHEREFERRAAEIBRER
ERRFEBERES - B G RClifford
ChanceBIR EZRMMEB OIS INE
B ZEFXRBEGIRARMERE
BB FE % o & % & I8 Rintelligent Edge
Technologies Berhad (7 5 2K 78 25 fx &
BREMS LT CHERITES -

BEH 635 e EREBER
BHEAEEE LR ETANIFH
ELRLETRR M BRERDAWE
28 o 8K AR ERFE R MMurdoch
ABEELBM - RARMNEMESEE -
BRAGHMAS (E) RRESFE
MAEE8 RAARERFARE:
MrgEreB -$RERA/—HHE
SAFEITTZEFRERE

BEREM 4055 BRBEASBRELE
MEXEREE -BxIHABTER
B RREFITRER -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board of the Company is pleased to present this Corporate
Government Report together with annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to high standards of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasize a quality
Board, sound internal control, transparency, independence and
accountability to all shareholders.

Throughout the financial year of 2010, the Group had applied
the principles as set out in the Code of Corporate Governance
Practices (the "CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) unless otherwise stated which in the opinion
of the Board are not appropriate to follow.

The Company conducts periodic review on its corporate
governance practices to ensure that the Company can meet the
requirements of the CG Code on an on-going basis. The key
corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarized as below:

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

The Board is mandated with promoting the success of the
Company by providing leadership and supervising control of
the business of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Company has the following
members on the Board:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHU Guangping (Chairman)

Mr. Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON
Mr. IP Chi Ming

Mr. So Chung Shing
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES
(continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"):

Dr. HUI Ka Wah Ronnie, JP
Mr. HO Kwan Tat

Mr. WONG Kean Li

Mr. LO Chi Ming, Anthony
Ms. Lu Bei Lin

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
12 to 14 of this Annual Report.

Under the Listing Rules, every listed issuer is required to
have at least three INEDs, at least one of whom must have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The number of INEDs has met
the requirement of the Listing Rules and represented nearly
two-third of the total Board members. Further more than one
of them have the appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to the requirement of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all INEDs meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of
the guidelines. Regular review will be made on the Board
composition to ensure the Company has a balance of skills,
expertise and experience appropriate for the requirements of
the business of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES
(continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company follows a formal and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new Directors to the Board. The Board
will consider on a regular basis whether necessary changes are
needed in respect of the structure, size and composition of the
Board and to identify suitably qualified candidates if there is
such a need. In accordance with the existing Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”), every newly appointed Director
shall hold office till the next following general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting.

According to the Bye-laws, at each annual general meeting of
the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
at least once every three years. For the avoidance of doubt, all
Directors, including the Chairman of the Board, shall be subject
to retirement by rotation.

Non-Executive Directors (Deviation from Code
Provision A.4.1)

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term subject to re-election. None of the existing INEDs are
engaged on specific term, and it constituted a deviation of
Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code. However all Directors,
including INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation at each
annual general meeting at least once every three years under
the Bye-laws. In the circumstances, the Board considers that
the present practice has already addressed the concerns of the
CG Code in this respect.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES EEECARRER (B)
(continued)
Numbers of Board Meetings and Directors’ EEEERNERESHESR
Attendance
During the financial year of 2010 under review, six board R-_E-SENENREE E5e8
meetings were held and the attendance of each Director at the TTAREH SESZERBROT:
Board meetings was as follows:
Attendance/
Number of Board meetings
HEE/
Name of Directors EEng EZEE3NRE
Mr. ZHU Guangping RETRE 5/6
Mr. Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON%E 4 6/6
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Wai (Note 1) REBEE(MFT) 1/4
Mr. IP Chi Ming (Note 2) EERSE (MH2) 5/5
Mr. LEUNG Shek Kong RyH TS 5/6
Mr. SONG Shufa (Note 3) REFESLE (Hi73) 3/4
Mr. MAU ChungYin, Paul (Note 4) BIMBELE (Hit4) 171
Dr. HUI Ka Wah Ronnie FRERLE 5/6
Mr. HO Kwan Tat MEELE 3/6
Mr. WONG Kean Li BKERAE 6/6
Mr. LO Chi Ming, Anthony BEREE 6/6
Notes: W
1, Mr. CHEUNG Chi Wai resigned as an executive Director on 17 1, REEEER_Z—TFNATLEA
August 2010. BEMTES -
2. Mr. IP Chi Ming was appointed as an executive Director on 25 2. EEXHEER-_Z—SF-A=-+H
February 2010. Eﬁ%?fiﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ%
3. Mr. SONG Shufa resigned as a non-executive Director on 24 3. REEEER_ZE-FTFNAZTN
August 2010. BEtEEmTEsS-
4. Mr. MAU Chung Yin, Paul was appointed as a non-executive 4. BHELER_E-—ZTENAZTN
Director on 24 August 2010. ?%?Ez%#%ﬂﬁﬁi



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES
(continued)

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings

The Board conducts meeting on a regular basis and on an ad
hoc basis. The Bye-laws allows Board meetings to be conducted
by means of telephones or other communications equipment
and any resolutions to be passed by way of written resolutions
circulated to and signed by all Directors from time to time
when necessary unless such as are temporarily unable to act
through ill-health or disability.

At least 14 days’ notice for regular Board meetings and
reasonable notice for non-regular Board meetings are given
to all Directors so as to ensure that each of them had an
opportunity to attend the meetings. The Company Secretary
assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings and
ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are complied
with. The agenda and the accompanying Board papers are sent
in full to all Directors at least 3 days before the date of the
Board meeting.

After the meeting, draft minutes of the Board meeting are
circulated to all Directors for their comment before execution
and approval. All Board minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and available for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice given by the Directors. Every Director is
entitled to have access to Board papers and related materials
and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Board is led by the executive Chairman and due to the
scale of the operation, the Board opines that it is not necessary
to appoint a Chief Executive Officer and daily operation of the
Group is delegated to executive Directors, department heads
and various committees.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee for overseeing particular aspect of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with clearly defined written terms of reference
which set out the scope and authorities of the respective
committee. The terms of reference are available to shareholders
for inspection at the principal place of business of the
Company and on the Company’s website. Copies of minutes of
all meetings and resolutions of the committees, which are kept
by the Company Secretary, are circulated to all Board members
and the committees are required to report back to the Board
on their decision and recommendations where appropriate.
The procedures and arrangements for a Board meeting, as
mentioned in the section “Practices and Conduct of Board
Meetings” above, also apply to the operation of the committee
meetings.

As at the date of this report, the members of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee are:

Audit Committee

Dr. HUI Ka Wah Ronnie, JP (Chairman)
Mr. HO Kwan Tat
Mr. LO Chi Ming, Anthony

Remuneration Committee

Mr. HO Kwan Tat (Chairman)
Mr. LO Chi Ming, Anthony

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides an important link between
Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within
the scope of the audit of the Company. The Audit Committee
was established in March 2000 and currently consists of three
members, of whom all are INEDs.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
appointment of auditors on an annual basis including a review
of the audit scope and the audit fees; ensuring the objectivity
and independence of the auditors, meeting with the auditors
to discuss issues arising from the final audit and any matters
the auditors suggest to discuss; reviewing the sufficiency and
effectiveness of the internal controls; reviewing the annual
and interim report in accordance with the accounting polices
and practices and relevant accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and the legal requirements; serving as a focal point for
communication between other Directors and the auditors in
respect of the duties relating to financial reporting.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional
advice according to the Company’s policy when necessary.

During the financial year of 2010 under review, two committee
meetings were held and the attendance of each committee
member at the committee meeting was as follows:
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Attendance/
Number of Committee
meetings attended

HER/
Name of Committee members ZESHENRS ZESEENRY
Dr. HUI Ka Wah Ronnie, JP (Chairman) HREEL KTEHL(ZE) 212
Mr. HO Kwan Tat MEELE 12
Mr. LO Chi Ming, Anthony BEREE 212
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the committee meetings held in the financial year of
2010, the Audit Committee performed the work summarized
below:

- Reviewing the financial reports and results
announcement for the following financial period before
submission to the Board for approval:

- for the year ended 31 December 2009

- for six months ended 30 June 2010

- Reviewing the auditors’ independence and report
recommending to the Board for the re-appointment
of the external auditors at the 2010 annual general
meeting.

The announcement results of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2010 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established for the purposes
of ensuring there are formal and transparent procedures
for setting policies on the remuneration for the Directors.
No Directors and executives can determine his/her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee was established in
March 2000 and currently consists of two members, of whom
both are INEDs.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice when necessary.

No meeting of Remuneration Committee was held during the
financial year of 2010.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing
the financial statements of the Group. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010,
the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
have been adopted and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (which also include Statements
of Standard Accounting Practice and Interpretations) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the applicable laws were complied with. The Directors
believe that they have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, and made judgment and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable and have ensured the financial
statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’'s external
auditors, Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng, are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 36 to 38.

Internal Control System

The Board maintains a sound and effective internal control
system to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the
Company's assets. The internal control system is designed
to provide reasonable assurance on the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, reliability of financial and management
reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring an effective system
of internal controls which cover all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions.
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TtEERRE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

External Auditors’ Remuneration

During the financial year of 2010, the remuneration paid
and payable to the Company’s external auditors, Messrs. HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng were set out belows:

BMERZH ()

MEZEE M E

ﬁ:? ZEHBEE BN REMK
UNGIRIN: % 4 4l R =t =B 92 i
SEHNOT -

Fees paid/payable to
external auditors

Services rendered for the Group mASERYZRE ENFEMIIEREMZER

HK$'000

FET

Audit services E1ZR% 680
Non-audit services (Taxation and FEEZIRE

professional services) (R EMEZERE) 120

Total: BT 800

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding directors’ securities transaction. Based
on specific enquiry of all the Directors, the Directors have
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model
Code throughout the financial year of 2010.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and, in particular, use annual general meetings or
other general meetings to communicate with shareholders and
encourage their participation in such meetings.

At least twenty (20) clear business days’ notice for annual
general meeting and at least ten (10) clear business days’
notice for all other general meetings are given to shareholders
of the Company before the meeting.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(continued)

Details of poll voting procedures will be explained during the
proceedings of meetings and any questions from shareholders
regarding the voting by way of poll will be answered. Poll
results will be posted on the website of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited on the business day following the general
meeting.

To promote communication, the Company maintains website
at www.suncorptech.com.hk where extensive information
and updates on the Company's business developments and
operations, financial information and other information are
posted.

On behalf of the Board

Zhu Guangping
Chairman and Executive Director

22 March 2011
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHRS

The Directors of the Company present their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and it also
provides corporate management services. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the provision of assembly service of
telephone and related products and the sales and marketing of
residential telephone products under its licence arrangements
under the Motorola brand.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 39.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past financial years is set out on page 128.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group has changed its activities to include
design, sales and marketing activities of telephone products
under the Motorola brand and extended the customer base
from Asia to include Central & Eastern Europe, The Middle
East, and Africa. The percentage of turnover with Shenzhen
Guo Wei Electronics Co., Ltd (“Guo Wei"), the Group’s jointly
controlled entity (i.e. 46% owned by the Group) in 2010 was
36.4% (which has changed from 2009 when it was 100%) and
other customers was approximately 63.6%. Guo Wei was the
single largest customer of the Group in 2010, and at the same
time, was the largest supplier of the Group, which accounted
for 100% of the purchases of the Group.

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate of
a Director (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
have an interest in any of the Group’s largest customer or the
largest supplier.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$2.6 million
on property, plant and equipment.

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHU Guangping

Mr. Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON

Mr. CHEUNG Chi Wai (Resigned on 17 August 2010)

Mr. IP Chi Ming (Appointed on 25 February 2010)

Mr. SO Chung Shing (Appointed on 18 February 2011)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Leung Shek Kong (Resigned on 18 February 2011)

Mr. SONG Shufa (Resigned on 24 August 2010)

Mr. Mau Chung Yin, Paul (Appointed on 24 August 2010 and
resigned on 18 February 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Dr. HUI Ka Wah, Ronnie, JP
Mr. HO Kwan Tat

Mr. WONG Kean Li

Mr. LO Chi Ming, Anthony

Ms. LU Bei Lin (Appointed on 18 February 2011)
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with Clause 86(2) of the of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Mr. So Chung Shing and Ms. Lu Bei Lin retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Clauses 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Mr. Zhu Guangping Mr. Malcolm Stephen Jacobs-
Paton and Mr. Wong Kean Li retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The term of office for each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors is the period from the date of last re-election up to
his retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of
the Directors, chief executive and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the Part XV of
the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or
(iii) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS EERFTETHRAEZROES

IN SHARES (continued)

Long Position

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

(%)

s
AR EEZREEO. 17ETZ BER

Number of ordinary shares held

FEEERYE
Percentage
of the issued
Personal Corporate share capital
Name of Directors interests interests of the Company
R N
EspE B AR NEER ERTREES®
(Note 1)
(Bzt1)
(%)
ZHU Guangping KEF 153,000,000 5.60
LEUNG Shek Kong (Note 2) 2Bk (Hat2) 52,715,694 76,416,422 473
Malcolm Stephen
JACOBS-PATON 782,343 0.03
IP Chi Ming E X 44 0.00
Notes: Bt -
1. The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of the 1. ZREBILRBEBEARAR-_T—
Company’s issued share capital of 2,732,788,925 as at 31 ZEF+ A=+ -BZEBETRA

December 2010.

2,732,788,9250% 1 & o

2. Mr. Leung Shek Kong, the Non-executive Director of the 2. ARAFJTEZRHERXAALE(ER

Company (resigned on 18 February 2011), is entitled to exercise ZE-——FZATN\BEE) EER
one third or more of the voting power at the general meeting of Suncorp Partners Limitedft R X &
Suncorp Partners Limited. In accordance with the SFO, Mr. Leung FIE=ZD 22— INLEREE-R
Shek Kong is deemed to be interested in 76,416,422 Shares held BEEFLRBEGRD RHEXLTER
by Suncorp Partners Limited, which together with his personal A ESuncorp Partners Limitedff %
interests of 52,715,694 Shares totaling 129,132,116 Shares. 76,416,422k Bt 10 - R 2 8 % L ER

52,715,694 & 5 2 A A 5+ & - &
RE$#£129,132, 16RO P EE#EE -

Z-ZFEEH
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
IN SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of
the Directors nor chief executive of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (i) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTIONS

On 23 May 2002, a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by shareholders under which the
Directors may, at their discretion, grant share options to eligible
persons including Directors and employees to subscribe shares
in the Company.

No share option was granted during the year.

At 31 December 2010, the number of shares in respect of
which share options could be exercisable under the terms of
the Share Option Scheme was 464,409 shares representing
less than 0.01% of the shares of the Company in issue at that
date.

Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 28
to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued) MR AE ()

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s TRBBEESNEESEZARAER
share options held by the Directors and employees during the HRNERNEE
year:

Exercise Balance  Granted  Exercised Lapsed Expired Balance

Date of price per at during during during during at

Name Notes  grant Exercise period share 112010  theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 31.12.2010

R-%-%% N-2-%%

-f-A tZR=1-H

:£] Wi RLpH ks BRTEE a8 ERRL  EAAR EREN FAER 258
HKS
A

(A)  DIRECTORS
g3
CHEUNG Chi Wai (8)&(b) 2552007 25.5.2007 t0 245.2012 0.409 1,188,727 - - (1,188,727) - -
F5E
Sub-total 1,188,727 - - (1,188,727) - -
It

(B)  EMPLOYEES (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS)

[E&(TREES)

(8)&(b) 2552007 25.5.2007 t0 24.5.2012 0.409 464,409 - - - - 464,409
Total 464,409 - - - - 464,409
a5t

Notes: X

(@) The share options were granted pursuant to the Share Option () ZEBREDREBERESIRD -
Scheme.

(b) The share options are exercisable subject to (i) up to 50% of (b) FZEBEMER FIAITE  HEEAZIUATR
the share options are exercisable from 25 May 2007 to 24 May B:(BA-ZET+LFRA-THERE
2008; (i) all remaining share options are exercisable from 25 ZEENFRAZTMA BB ATE
May 2008 to 24 May 2012. T%50% 2 BERRAE ¢ (iNeh T AT BB AR iE

IH-_EZN\FREA-_THARE"Z
——FRA-TWAIEHETE -

Z-ZFEEH
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2010, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
showed that other than the interests disclosed in “Directors’
and Chief Executive's Interests in Shares”, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of its relevant interests
in the issued capital of the Company.

Long Position
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

Name of shareholder Nature of interest

RERME/EH EmE

CNI Capital Limited
(Note 3) (f13#3)

Corporate interest
NGIE: 32

Personal interest
(EPNG

ZHU Guangping (Note 4)
KEY (H1it4)

BRE(E)

bR £SO BEE SN AR B S A A A
BRAANFNEMKHEGETLER%Z
B AEEZAERUBARBHEM
HitEB 2 IR EEEMER °

FTERRZROER

RIEERFETHABZRGOER] AT
BEREZERN RAQAEBRES L
BRI EB6H(EFECETERRE LM
s RZE—TF+A=+—8"
ERRAARBETRA 2 HEERA
SARNBZBREMOT o

L)
AR A REEO. 1ET.Z BEK

Percentage
of the issued

Number of  share capital
ordinary of the
shares held Company
HERRATE BT

FEEBERHE [Nl
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Hat1) (Hfat2)

(%)

274,000,000 10.03
153,000,000 5.6



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1. The information given above on the number of shares held
is based on notifications received by the Company as at 31
December 2010.

2. The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of the
Company’s issued share capital of 2,732,788,925.

3. CNI Capital Limited is wholly-owned by Capital VC Limited, a
company limited on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

4. Mr. ZHU Guangping is the Chairman and Executive Director of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company were not aware of any
other person (other than the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have, interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares, which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who was directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member
of the Group.

GUARANTEES SUBSIDIARY AND/OR TO
AFFILIATED COMPANY

As at 31 December 2010, guarantee in an amount of
UsD2,000,000 was given by the Company to DBS Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited in respect of banking facilities granted
to Suncorp Global Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company (2009: Nil).

Details of the jointly controlled entity are set out in Note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company has no reserve available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2010.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is available
for distribution. However, a Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(a) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’'s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all of the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY (continued)

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of which
are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY?'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2010.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of a significant event occurring after the balance sheet
date are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng were appointed as the Company’s
auditors with effect from 13 February 2009 to fill the casual
vacancy arising from the resignation of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu on 13 January 2009. There have been no other
changes of auditors for the past three financial years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2008, 2009 and 2010 were audited
by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng. A resolution will be submitted
to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

ZHU Guangping
Chairman
Hong Kong, 22 March 2011

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHRS

B B R ()

ARARIERMERETSERHESR
RERREE ZRE HEFBIANKES
R M E28

BE HEIBEEARRZLED

&%

ARRAIHEERMNERRRFAMER
B HEXBEARFREMETES -

AREREZRHAM
RBEE-ZF-TF+-_A=+—HLE
BFEE  ARAEEFREAZDRFTMK
%O

REMBREE

BEHRBLEZERSHFABRENES
M ImER M 34 -

BB

BEemEEMM _STAE _A
TZHAEEZER/NDA ZZEED - A
BREY BERTSHMIN-_TE
NE-AT=ZBBERMELZREZT
R o EMMEJIE?IBZiE]I%EﬁMZ%(

AEBHE_TTN\F —ZTAFR
—E-EEF A=+ -HUEFEZR
AMBRRCARESHMERHES -
RIRFEFAE LBRE-FERER
BNMEREESHMERAALRRX
B -

REEFE
AT

FE
58 —E——F=A=-+=H

Z-ZFEER

ANNUAL REPORT 2010



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BN AR S

31/F, Gloucester Tower &6

paywi saibojouyda) dioduns

ERA- IR S S 2 ]

. The Landmark iR
HLB B & 3 &5 F % B 11 Pedder Street 24115
Hodgson Impey Cheng Central BHES
Chartered A ant Hong Kong =F el
artere ccountants
Certified Public Accountants RE31E
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BB ERATRRE

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Suncorp Technologies Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 39 to 127, which comprise the consolidated and
Company’s statements of financial position as at 31 December
2010, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2010, and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2
in the consolidated financial statements which indicates that
the Group incurred a net loss of approximately HK$18,563,000
during the year ended 31 December 2010 and, as of that date,
the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately HK$50,130,000. These conditions, along with
other matters as set forth in Note 2, indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. As
explained in Note 2, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity
of which depends upon the Group's ability to improve the
liquidity position to enable the Group to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the foreseeable
future. The consolidated financial statements do not include
any adjustments that would result from the failure to operate
as a going concern.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Distribution and selling expenses

Operating expenses

Impairment loss recognised on
trade receivables

Reversal of impairment loss on
trade and other receivables from
a jointly controlled entity

Fair value change on conversion
options embedded in convertible
loan notes

Fair value change on convertible
notes designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on
translating foreign operations

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Loss per share
— Basic (HK cents per share)

- Diluted (HK cents per share)

VAN
r A

2HE RS X

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

Wz
HEKA

£
£ g A

HE RS A

aEm

R 5B

B R R
BOREL—MABLAES
ENE e S
2R ERA
TR P
ERIRE AT EED
i AEATETIA
BRE 2 THRER

2 AT ESD

BT AL A

PR AT E 1R
FEH

AFEEEBR
Hit 2 H W &
MEBINRT
ZERER
AEEXERSEAE
BRER
—EXR(ZREWL)

—#E (BB

NOTES
Pt

18

17

25

10

13

15

2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
TRT TET
178,700 50,450
(164,488) (45,760)
14,212 4,690
2,658 2,216
(12,308) =
(32,820) (31,207)
(1,802) =
5,139 =
3,914 (83,294)
3,823 (29,251)
(1,379) (8,525)
(18,563) (145,371)
- (104)
(18,563) (145,475)
169 121
(18,394) (145,354)
(0.72) (8.4)
(0.83) (8.4)

T-ZFEEH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

%éﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ‘)ﬂ%

At 31 December 2010 R=E—ZF+-A=+—H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

Interest in a jointly controlled entity

Current assets
Trade, bill and other receivables

Trade receivables with insurance
coverage

Trade and other receivables
from a jointly controlled
entity

Bill receivable discounted with
full recourse

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Advance drawn on bill receivable
discounted with full recourse

Amounts due to directors

Amount due to a related company

Conversion options embedded in
convertible loan notes

Convertible notes designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

Net current liabilities
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Convertible loan notes

Net liabilities

NOTES
Pt &E
FRBEE
ME - BB k& 16

R—EeERralzEsm 17

RBEE

EWE FR - I
EENEMEKRZE 18
ERFRZEKRESER 19

U —REaE R

BHRAREM

JE W5k TE 17
A 2EBRE

Z B BRI E iR 20
RITHEBREIRE 21
IIILEJJEF

BNEZER R

H & BIE 22
BYHMELEBEREZ

EURARER 2 BHK 23
N EEHE 24
R —EBEBEARNE 24
R ERZEEZA

TR A% ¥ 25

EEBRAFENA
BRRcUBEEE 26

RBREFE
BREERABDER

kRBEE
ABMEERER 25

BEFE

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
9,947 10,581
9,947 10,581
24,920 6,458
8,554 =
- 34,392

5,735 =
25,361 9,072
64,570 49,922
44,403 58,611
5,735 =
37,732 30,926
- 28,356

- 25,079
26,830 30,516
114,700 173,488
(50,130) (123,566)
(40,183) (112,985)
- 9,125
(40,183) (122,110)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Capital and reserves BRAR @&
Share capital IR
Reserves &

Total equity mER

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March
2011 and were signed on its behalf by:

e B BMRRE

At 31 December 2010 RA=-Z—ZF+—-A=1+—H

2010 2009

NOTE HK$000 HK$'000
P 5E TER TET
27 273,279 217,079
(313,462) (339,189)

(40,183) (122,110)

HAEMBHRRENR_T——F=H
" RESESHAERRETEL I
ANIEERERRE

Mr. ZHU Guangping Mr. Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON
KERERE Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON &4
Director Director
BE EZ

T-ZFEEH
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

%R R R

At 31 December 2010 R=ZE—ZF+—-A=+—8

FRBEE
iU UNCIPA: S

Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets REBEE
Deposits and prepayments Be RBAHIE
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRE S
Current liabilities nEBEE
Accrued charges and FEEH R = S E At
other payables JE 5 3018
Amounts due to directors FETE = 3R
Conversion options embedded in ~ AI#IRE RE#
convertible loan notes Z R R AR HE

EEREAFEIA
Bk AR RE

Convertible notes designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

Net current liabilities RBAEEFRE
Total assets less current liabilities B EERFEEE
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible loan notes RBRERER
Net liabilities BEERH
Capital and reserves RAR#E
Share capital IR
Reserves &
Total equity HiER

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2011 and were
signed on its behalf by:

Mr. ZHU Guangping
REFRE

Director

EF

2010 2009

NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
it &E TER TR
5,646 839

1,092 4,689

6,738 5,528

4,329 30,415

24 26,743 7,543
25 - 25,079
26 26,830 30,516
57,902 93,553

(51,164) (88,025)

(51,164) (88,025)

25 - 9,125
(51,164) (97,150)

27 273,279 217,079
33 (324,443) (314,229)
(51,164) (97,150)

MHRREREN_T——F=ZA=-1+=H
EE=ei g REERE  WhTIE
ERREZE

Mr. Malcolm Stephen Jacobs-Paton
Malcolm Stephen Jacobs-Paton %t &
Director

£



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

At 1 January 2009

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive
income for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Issue of shares upon conversion of
convertible loan notes
Forfeiture of vested share options

31 December 2009

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Issue of shares upon conversion of
convertible loan notes
Forfeiture of vested share options

At 31 December 2010

\ 77j1/¢ ﬂ H
RERRR

RMEREEENE
IEREENELR

R BREREEAR
mEIR(A
RUEEE 2B

R-ETNE
t-h=1-H

RERRR
MEREEENE
REREENELR

R BREREEAR
mEIR(A
RUEEE 2B

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ =%

I'L'| A —ll— 27
:én‘v'ﬁ = m

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

% B %

—EE+_A=+-RLFE

KAARREE ARG
Other Share

Share Share capital ~ Translation option  Accumulated Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve losses equity
bx  hRfRE HtEARE  BERE  BRERE  ZHER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR ThL TR TERL TR Tin TR

(Note)

(Wit)
148979 279,946 14,945 (#3) 2,09% (569.437)  (123514)
- - - - - (145,475)  (145,475)
- - - 121 - - 121
- - - 121 - (145,475)  (145,354)
68,100 78,658 - - - - 146,758
i} - = - (1,715) 1,715 =
217,079 358,604 14,945 78 381 (113197)  (122,110)
- - - - - (18563) (18563)
- - - 169 - - 169
- - - 169 - (18563) (18,394)
56,200 41 - - - - 100,321
i} - = - (274) 274 =
273,279 402,725 14,945 247 107 (731,486) (40,183)

R-Z—BE+-A=+—A £%H

At 31 December 2010, the accumulated losses of the Group
included accumulated losses of approximately HK$44,357,000
(2009: HK$44,357,000) attributable to its jointly controlled

entity.

Note:

Other capital reserve of the Group represents the difference

between the nominal value of the share capital and the share
premium of the subsidiaries at the date on which they were
acquired by the Group and the nominal value of the share

capital issued as consideration for the acquisition.

LENERERESEATEH BT
&5 18 4944,357,000%8 o0 (ZEZT N4 :

44,357,000/ 7T) ©

AKEZ Et BB RHR

AKBREE R ZBRARBEMEER
ERESUBREMETZRARE

Xz ER -

T-ZFEEH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GEBRETRNE R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—T4F+-A=+—HIFE

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Operating activities REXER
Loss before tax Bri Al B 1R (18,563) (145,371)
Adjustments for: e
Depreciation of property, ME BERSEITE
plant and equipment 3,377 2,507
Fair value change on conversion AMBRERER 2 AT
options embedded in convertible B A TFEE
loan notes (3,914) 83,294
Fair value change on convertible EBERRATEIAERER
notes designated as at fair value ZABRER 2 N THES
through profit or loss (3,823) 29,251
Impairment loss recognised e E 5 IR 2 B R
on trade receivables HEEE 1,802 -
Interest expense FMERX 1,379 8,525
Interest income BN ON (12) (306)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE BMELREZ
plant and equipment (Kz) /EE (120) 7
Operating cash flows before RiTEEBSEERIZ
movements in working capital RERENE (19,874) (22,093)
Increase in trade, bill and other EIE ZER - BREER
receivables H{th USRI G N (15,264) (221)
Increase in trade receivables with ~ BRRZEUKE 5 B8R F3E h0
insurance coverage (8,554) -
Decrease/(increase) in trade and W —RHEENEE SRR
other receivables from a jointly REA R FIER D, (Em)
controlled entity 34,392 (34,392)
Increase in bill receivable fE2EBRE
discounted with full recourse Z BN BEER SRR N (5,735) =
(Decrease)/increase in trade and ERE ZRR L EA
other payables FERERIE ORid) /1N (14,208) 17,288
(Decrease)/increase in amount e —fR B E AR
due to a related company #E (Rd) (28,356) 28,356
Cash used in operations REFH ES (57,599) (11,062)
Interest paid ERHE (939) (1,845)
Income taxes refunded BEER B AR - 1,956
Net cash used in operating REXBBRACRESFE
activities (58,538) (10,951)
Investing activities REXK
Purchase of property, BENE  BE
plant and equipment B (2,627) (6,253)
Refundable deposit paid for proposed FtiZZUWBEHBAGME
acquisition of subsidiaries SRz AIERERSE
(5,000) -
Interest received EYHE 12 306
Proceeds from disposal of property, H&E¥E « BE &&E
plant and equipment ZFTSE0A 141 262
Net cash used in investing REXBHAZREFH
activities (7,474) (5,685)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of convertible
notes designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

Increase in advance drawn on bill
receivables discounted with full
recourse

Repayment of advances drawn on
bill receivables discounted with
full recourse

Repayment of obligations under
finance leases

Advances from/(repayment to)
directors

Interest paid for convertible
loan notes

Interest paid for finance leases

Net cash generated from
financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the financial year

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the financial year,
represented by bank balances
and cash

GEHRETRE X

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

BMEXK
BITHRERBEAYE
AR
QELES: PA e/

BXMBEZEBERE R

RIRRIR 2 BFIEAN

EEEXHAEHEREL

FEABE R R IR 2 B0
BERMEHERT 2ER
EER(REFEN)

AR ERRES N
ZH B
ARMEREZNZHME

MERBEL
ZEEHE

HeRHRE&EEEE
#hnEEE
IEERSE T E

RUBFERRRK RS
EREEEEE

RUBEEERE AL
EREEEER
BRITEBRR S

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET
70,000 26,200
22,951 -
(17.216) -
- (1,597)
6,806 (3,357)
(272) (252)

- (15)
82,269 20,979
16,257 4,343
32 119
9,072 4,610
25,361 9,072

T-ZFEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BZ—Z— T4 +-A=+—HI-5E
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GENERAL

Suncorp Technologies Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Act of Bermuda
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the corporate information
section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company and
it also provides corporate management services. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design,
manufacture and sales and provision of assembly services
of telephones and related products.

The functional currency of the Company is United States
dollars (“USD"). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") for the
convenience of the Company's shareholders, as the
Company is listed in Hong Kong.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given consideration to
the future liquidity of the Group in light of a net loss of
approximately HK$18,563,000 during the year ended 31
December 2010 and, as of that date, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$50,130,000. The directors of the Company have been
taking active steps to improve the liquidity position of the
Group. These steps include (i) undertaking fund raising
transactions during the financial year ended 31 December
2010 and subsequently; (ii) implementing stringent cost
control measures to strengthen its cash flow position;
(iii) evaluating alternative sources of financing; and (iv)
evaluating new business opportunities. Provided that these
measures can successfully improve the liquidity position of
the Group, the directors of the Company are satisfied that
the Group will be able to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due for the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis. Should the Group
be unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the value of assets
to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities. The
effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

—REH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The following new and revised Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") have been
applied by the Group in these consolidated financial
statements. The application of these new and revised
Standards and Interpretations has not had any material
impact on the amounts reported for the current and prior
years but may affect the accounting for future transactions
or arrangements.

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of Financial Statements
HKAS 7 (Amendments) Statement of Cash Flows
HKAS 17 (Amendments)  Leases

HKAS 27 (Revised 2008)  Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements
HKAS 28 (Revised 2008)  Investments in Associates

HKAS 39 (Amendments)  Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement - Eligible
Hedged Items

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards -
Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Share-based Payment - Group
Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions

HKFRS 3 (Revised 2008) Business Combinations

HKFRS 5 (Amendments) Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HK-Int 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
- Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

HK (IFRIC) - Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BZE—Z— T4 +-A=+—HI-45E

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in

2010!
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets®

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
HKAS 24 (as revised Related Party Disclosures*
in 2009)

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Rights Issues®

HK (IFRIC) - Int 14
(Amendments)

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement?

HK (IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010 or 1 January 2011, as appropriate

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
February 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2011

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZ-Z— T4+ - A=+—HIIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in November
2009) introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (as revised in November 2010) adds
requirements for financial liabilities and for derecognition.

e Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values
at the end of subsequent accounting periods.

e In relation to financial liabilities, the significant
change relates to financial liabilities that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities
that are designated as at fair value through profit or
loss, the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the presentation of
the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire amount of
the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as at fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

3. Eﬁ%ﬁ&@%ﬂZé%%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BZE—Z— T4 +-A=+—HI-45E
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 that will be adopted
in the Group's consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning 1 January 2013 and that the
application of the new Standard may have a significant
impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s
financial assets. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review
has been completed.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 titled Disclosures — Transfers
of Financial Assets increase the disclosure requirements
for transactions involving transfers of financial assets.
These amendments are intended to provide greater
transparency around risk exposures when a financial asset
is transferred but the transferor retains some level of
continuing exposure in the asset. The amendments also
require disclosures where transfers of financial assets are
not evenly distributed throughout the period.

The directors do not anticipate that these amendments
to HKFRS 7 will have a significant effect on the Group's
disclosures regarding transfers of trade receivables
previously effected. However, if the Group enters into
other types of transfers of financial assets in the future,
disclosures regarding those transfers may be affected.

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (as revised in 2009)
modifies the definition of a related party and simplifies
disclosures for government-related entities.

The disclosure exemptions introduced in HKAS 24 (as
revised in 2009) do not affect the Group because the
Group is not a government-related entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ =%

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

The amendments to HKAS 32 titled Classification of
Rights Issues address the classification of certain rights
issues denominated in a foreign currency as either an
equity instrument or as a financial liability. To date, the
Group has not entered into any arrangements that would
fall within the scope of the amendments. However, if
the Group does enter into any rights issues within the
scope of the amendments in future accounting periods,
the amendments to HKAS 32 will have an impact on the
classification of those rights issues.

K (IFRIC) - Int 19 provides guidance regarding the
accounting for the extinguishment of a financial liability
by the issue of equity instruments. To date, the Group
has not entered into transactions of this nature. However,
if the Group does enter into any such transactions in
the future, HK (IFRIC) — Int 19 will affect the required
accounting. In particular, under HK (IFRIC) — Int 19, equity
instruments issued under such arrangements will be
measured at their fair value, and any difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished
and the fair value of equity instruments issued will be
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—T4F+-A=+—HIFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ =%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets
or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the
Group and other parties undertaken an economic activity
that is subject to joint control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZ =T

4.

—EEFT_A=+-RALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interests in joint ventures (continued)

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint
venture arrangements directly, the Group’s share of jointly
controlled assets and any liabilities incurred jointly with
other venturers are recognised in the financial statements
of the relevant entity and classified according to their
nature. Liabilities and expenses incurred directly in respect
of interests in jointly controlled assets are accounted for
on an accrual basis. Income from the sale or use of the
Group's share of the output of jointly controlled assets,
and its share of joint venture expenses, are recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transactions will flow to/from the Group and
their amount can be measured reliably.

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which each venturer has an interest
are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in jointly
controlled entities are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net
assets of the jointly controlled entities, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of
a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest
in that jointly controlled entity, the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional
share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
that jointly controlled entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ =%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interests in joint ventures (continued)

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled
entity of the Group, unrealised profits or losses are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the jointly controlled entity, except to the extent that
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses
is recognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—T4F+-A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

The Group's financial assets comprise only loans and
receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade,
bill and other receivables, trade receivables with insurance
coverage, bill receivable discounted with full recourse and
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment
losses (see accounting policy in respect of impairment loss
on financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the investment have
been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade,
bill and other receivables, assets that are assessed not
to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments, as well
as observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is recognised is the difference
between the asset'’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

4,

FESHEHR @
ERI A (E)

THEE(F)

TREERE
EREENSBREHNRERE SR
AEREARETR - EBEER
BEBEBBIREMNMGRARR
eREART I RAZEBEER
BAEN-—HIZHEEAMRIZE
AR AR ME

RERLEUFEMS - RENE
BERA S -

o FITARBOTHBREARK
R 3

s ERAH BUWREAIEXRA
BHAE &

s BRATRKEGHELANBE
o

RETHEINEREE (WEKE
SR IR K E b e KR
ms FTEEBELHENEES
MBI E S — G AT (B RE - B
EREAEBRENTEZEEER
ARBEBEWRLE  TEEFR
LT URBRS M EEERR

HERAREZEEBE NI REEE

RIBBHAANE L EREEM
5 ORHERACREBRSERAEE
REEEMGTARRERENRE
(ZEeRMBEEZRERARFR) 2
R EHE -

T-ZFEEH

ANNUAL REPORT 2010



paywi saibojouyda) diodung

ERA IR 3% 3]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZ =T

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods
(see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When an item of trade and other
receivables is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or
loss. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through
profit or loss when the financial liability is either held for
trading or it is designated as at fair value through profit or
loss on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—T4F+-A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading may be designated as at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest
paid on the financial liability and is included in the other
gains and losses line item in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Fair value is determined in the
manner described in note 26.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, advance drawn on bill receivable discounted
with full recourse, amounts due to directors and amount
due to a related company are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZ =T~ T4 +-A=+—HIIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than financial liabilities classified as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Convertible loan notes

If the conversion option of convertible loan notes exhibits
characteristics of an embedded derivative, it is separated
from its liability component. On initial recognition, the
derivative component of the convertible loan notes is
measured at fair value and presented as part of derivative
financial instruments. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the derivative component
is recognised as the liability component. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and derivative
components of the convertible loan notes based on
the allocation of proceeds to the liability and derivative
components when the instruments are initially recognised.
The portion of the transaction costs relating to the liability
component is recognised initially as part of the liability.
The portion relating to the derivative component is
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—T4F+-A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Convertible notes designated as at fair value through
profit or loss

On initial recognition, the convertible notes with the
derivative component as a whole are designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The
entire convertible notes are initially recognised at fair value
on the date of issue and are subsequently measured at fair
value until conversion or redemption. Changes in the fair
value of the entire convertible notes are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as they
arise. Interest on convertible notes designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is included in the fair value
gain or loss for that period.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Financial guarantee contract issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair value and, if not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently
measures at the higher of:

e the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

e the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the revenue recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—T4F+—-A=1+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it
no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that
is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and
the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. When
an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for goods sold and services provided
in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has been passed.

Assembly services fee is recognised when services are
provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
state-managed retirement scheme which are defined
contribution schemes, are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—Z4F+—-A=1+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they
are capitalized in accordance with the Group's policy
on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs (continued)

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—Z4F+—-A=1+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interest in a joint venture, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising form deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current or deferred tax for the year is recognised in
profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ =%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (“foreign currencies”) are
recorded at the rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rate prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of foreign currency translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—Z4F+—-A=1+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to accumulated losses.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 4, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Going concern and liquidity

As disclosed in Note 2, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
The appropriateness of the going concern basis is assessed
after taking into consideration all relevant available
information about the future of the Group, including
business forecasts and cash flow projections for the year
ending 31 December 2011. Such forecasts and projections
about the future inherently involve uncertainties. Actual
results could differ significantly and hence render the
adoption of the going concern basis not appropriate.

Fair value of convertible notes designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

The directors of the Company use their judgement in
selecting an appropriate valuation technique for financial
instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners
are applied. For the conversion options embedded in
the convertible loan notes and the convertible notes
designated as at fair value through profit or loss as
disclosed in Notes 25 and 26 respectively, assumptions are
made based on quoted market prices or rates as adjusted
for specific features of the instruments. At 31 December
2010, the aggregate carrying amount of the convertible
notes designated as at fair value through profit or loss are
approximately HK$26,830,000.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which
includes convertible loan notes), cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and accumulated
losses.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
by considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the issue of
new shares as well as the issue of new debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets
Loans and receivables
— Trade, bill and other receivables

- Trade receivables with insurance
coverage

- Trade and other receivables from
a jointly controlled entity

— Bill receivable discounted with
full recourse

— Bank balances and cash

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
— Conversion options embedded
in convertible loan notes
— Convertible notes designated
as at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
— Trade and other payables

— Advance drawn on bill receivable
discounted with full recourse

— Amounts due to directors

- Amount due to a related
company

— Convertible loan notes
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THEE
BRYEI AR R
ZERAE
—ABRRERRE
P R P
—HERRRFEIIA
Bk AT

iz

R B HEK AT AR
ZERAR
—ENEZEAK
Hi AR

- EXHMAEEEREZ
BRI R IR 2 25X

-ENESHAE

- —RAEEE
NCIES

— A HREERRE

(a) 2BMIE B
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE Fib
19,070 5676
8,554 _
- 34,392
5,735 -
25,361 9,072
58,720 49,140
- 25,079
26,830 30,516
26,830 55,595
44,403 58,611
5,735 _
37,732 30,926
- 28,356
- 9,125
87,870 127,018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—Z4F+—-A=1+—HIFE

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s treasury function provides services to
the business units, co-ordinates access to domestic
and international financial markets, monitors and
manages the financial risks relating to the operations
of the Group through internal risk reports which
analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks.
These risks include market risk (including foreign
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group's major financial instruments include trade,
bill and other receivables, trade receivables with
insurance coverage, trade and other receivables from
a jointly controlled entity, bill receivable discounted
with full recourse, bank balances, trade and other
payables, advance drawn on bill receivable discounted
with full recourse, amounts due to directors, amount
due to a related company, convertible loan notes and
convertible notes designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies applied by the Group
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

7. ERIA (&)
(b) Bt ERERERERER

AEBZEBNEREHE
AR AR - BB AR
Aty BB S BT 52 6T
fE-BBATRRRE (%R
HRERREEMER 2 2)
MERKERRBAKEZE
ZEBER ZERBREED
m R (BREERR - F X
R kEMEBRR) FE
R EREBE SRR

AEBZFTECRHTIABERE
WEZEN BREEREM
EWHIE ERRZENRE S
O Sl E RN )
RRREMEKRZE HE2R
HBEREZEWHEFAEE - R
s EBRESEREEM
BAZIE BIXWNE2AER
BEBBRERE BN E
NEEHIE BN —HBBE
NEIFE BRRERZER
EEABELATEIABRZERZ
HREgR -EHERSMTA
BREZRRUAREAEEBRIE
ZERRBRMERZBRENT
X - EREBREEENREZEY
FR M - AREREE RERB X
H R ER & B B o

AEEEY 2RI AEE
RERNFEARARY 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk

(1)

Foreign currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which exposed the
Group to foreign currency risk. Approximately
34.8% of the Group's sales are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of
the group entity making the sale, whilst almost
59.6% of costs are denominated in the group
entity’s respective functional currencies.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

Liabilities
=N

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAER FHET
HKD BT 3,478 3,209
Euro (“"EUR") BRZE 382
Renminbi (“RMB") AR 1,616 1,089

Sensitivity analysis

As USD is pegged with HKD, the Group's
currency risk in relation to the monetary assets
and monetary liabilities denominated in HKD is
expected to be minimal. The Group is mainly
exposed to the effects of fluctuation in EUR and
RMB.

7. ®WMIE(E)
b) GERREEEEREE

(%)
™ 5 B
(i) SME B

/NI Qe N RN B
TUINESEZEE ' &
SE R i mEINER R o
KEBXK348%7 HE R
WINETHEZEBE
BN ERE MmO
59.6% N ARUNEEE
BAG 7 EEEHE

REEHEERE - A&
BIAINEHECERERE

RESBEZREBENT
Assets
BE

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
7,912 8,252
2,264 676

BERE DT

HRE T ERTHE - K
SEHEENETEZE
BEERBHAGBNIEMRE
EREARER - AEET
EHUBEMARKER
REZHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—Z4F+—-A=1+—HIFE

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

7. ERIA (&)
b) HHEEAREEERRBX

policies (continued) (&)

Market risk (continued) % E R (&)

(i) Foreign currency risk (continued) () srEEE (E)
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BRES N (&)
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity TRFINEMBEME
to a 5% increase and decrease in USD against HHFETE 2T BN
the respective foreign currencies and all WA (E 25% L F R T &

other variables were held constant. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used by management in the
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period
for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. On
this basis, there will be an increase in loss (2009:
decrease in loss) where USD strengthen 5%
against the respective foreign currencies, and
vice versa.

HEAEBEZZE 5%
BEHEHINEERESE
BRI BE IR 2 BT
fh - MREDITEBRRE
SMNEHEMAREECER
AR - WHINEERZ5%
RHMBAZFREERR
HHRERKZHRE - &
e B - i 52T 3L AR B b
B ES% KB ZER
“eEn(ZEENE:

BREL)  RZIR

BEZHE ARBzEE
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx THx TEx THT
Decrease in loss/(increase  FREER D,/
in loss) for the year (EBEm)
19 19 (32) 21

Impact of EUR

Impact of RMB



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZ-Z— T4+ A=+—HIIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(if)

(iif)

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets as at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the
Group's income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group currently does not have
a policy on hedges of interest rate risk. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

Other price risk

As the Group has no significant investment as
at 31 December 2010 and 2009. The Group
currently does not have a policy on hedges of
other price risk. However, the management
monitors the price rate and will consider hedging
the risk exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

7. ERIA (&)
b) ¥HEAREEERRBX

(&)

mi5E kR (&)

(i) F* g
ARAERE_-T
E&_77H¢+ H
=+—BURBEARFHEE
E AEBEZUAREE
iﬁi}m%$t%T§ﬁ%
NESEHHTE - KAEHE
HmlﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬂMZ
BR-Am ERBER
ﬂfﬂ I%C%EM%
Jﬁﬂ/#‘iﬁﬂ—?—ﬂ PR

(i) EERES

HRAKEEE-_Z—F
FR-_ZEEAFT A
St-HIEBERKRE -
$%Iﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁf
{B1% e 2 PSR
EEFWWFWH I%
REBRZRUHENE
HRER

ﬁgﬂ@

RZE-—ZTER-_FTNF
+_ﬂ_+ B S5 77 R
BTHEEEIASE®HA
Lﬁ$%IﬁE%FEEZE
REERR  TREKAME
#R%%WREE% R BE
EZREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—Z4F+—-A=1+—HIFE

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

In order to manage the credit risk, the management
of the Group has monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. No impairment losses in respect of trade
and other receivables from a jointly controlled entity
was recognised by the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010 and 2009. An impairment losses of
approximately HK$1,802,000 (2009: nil) in respect of
the trade receivable was recognised by the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2010. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is being managed.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are creditworthy banks.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management
monitors the utilisation of borrowings.

7. ERIA (&)
b) HHEEAREEERRBX

(%)
SEER (&)

BEEFEERR AEEZE
EEBE M EERER  BRK
RRETHREBEER - It
I AEERFIBEESEHR
RBEHRERBZ kD&
o BERLAIIKRE S ERER
RAKRERBE - NEBRE
E_E-ZER-_TTNEF
+-A=+—BLHFEYERR
ER—HAERAEIERR
Hib el R BERRESSE -
AEERBE-_Z—ZF+=
AZ+—BLEEREKRES
BR T HE SR 491,802,000 7T (—
ZTNF - E)ZRERBSE-
BREME  ARAREERARK

EEZEERRTEEE -

RBEC < EERRER  E
REOTREBRE ZRT

REBE & ER

REERDECRAR ~&H
ERRBBEEEERARAZ
RekReFEHAEBKFE K
BREETAREZEE  BE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 7. IR (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) BBEBREEBEERKRXR

policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately
HK$18,563,000 for the year ended 31 December
2010 and, as of that date, the Group’'s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$50,130,000. The directors of the Company have
been taking active steps to improve the liquidity
position of the Group. These steps include (i)
undertaking fund raising transactions during the
year ended 31 December 2010 and subsequently
(ii) implementing stringent cost control measures
to strengthen its cash flow position; (iii) evaluating
alternative sources of financing; and (iv) evaluating
new business opportunities. Provided that these
measures can successfully improve the liquidity
position of the Group, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due for
the foreseeable future.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table reflects
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.

(%)
SEER (&)

REERBE_T—ZTF+=
A=Z+-—BLEEEHBZE
1855840 418,563,000 L M
AEBR-_ZTE—ZTF+=A
StT-BZRBEERERD
& E S H #950,130,0005 7T °
ARAEE—HEBEBERTEH
WMERAEB 2R E M
M ZETHERBOIREEZ
E-ZF+-A=+—HB1tY
BEBUREZETEER S
(i E e BR AR AR AR IR B 48 7+ A
MEREEZREREMN
(T EMBE RS Rv)
AT o TR R TR T K
NREAEEZRBEERNR
ZART  KRAREZEMAE
B RN R KR I E
MHEME-

TRFAJIAKE SR AR
BRNETRRIHIBR - BT
ERMEBEMS  ARRBRER
BAGEARBERNRZIEHR
BYmMSHERABE I AR
Beme TREFMNERAE
ZBREM e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—T4F+—-A=1+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 7. 2EMIE (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) BBEBREEBEERERXR
policies (continued) (&)

Liquidity risk (continued) RBELRER (&)

Total

Weighted undis-

average counted
interest rate  Less than 13 3 months 1to cash flows  Carrying

MEFH  1month  months tolyear  3years KHEEE  amount
Rz SMEAR 1E3ER EAEIE  1BE R#E  REE
%  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

T TR TR Tz TER  TEn

2010 ZE-%F

Non-derivative financial T4 £REE

liabilities

Trade and other EREABENR

payables HhERFE - 403 - - - 44403 44,403

Advance drawn on bl BYME2ERRE
receivable discounted LENBRER

with full recourse a5 0.58 - 5,768 - - 5,768 5,735
Amounts due to diectors R EZFE - 3R - - - M
Convertible notes EEAEATE

designated as at fair value  SIAE&EZ

through profit or loss THRSE - - - 203 1,212 1415 26,830

82,135 5,768 203 1,212 89,318 114,700
2009 “2ENE
Trade and other ERE5%IR - 58611 - - - 58611 58601
payables H AR
Amounts due to directors  ERESFE - 309 - - - 3096 3096
Amount due to arelated ~ EF—THAHE

company AAFE - 283% - - - 283%  283%
Convertible loan notes ~~ WAREHFE 19.6 - - 31259 12605 9,125
Convertible notes EEBARLTE

designated as at fair value ~ JIAIBEEZ

through profit or loss THRREE - - - i 14,326 14,397 30,516

117,893 - 102 26,920 144,915 157,534



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments

M BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

7. £RIAE(E)
(c) eMIEZAFE

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative financial instruments)
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices or rates from observable current
market transactions as inputs. For an option-based
derivative, the fair value is estimated using option
pricing model (for example, the binomial model).

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors
of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in

the consolidated financial statements approximate HEENEQFE-
their fair values.
2010 2009
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
REE DFE RHEE ~FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TERT TET TET
Financial liabilities ERERE
Liability component of &2 # 88 5 A 71 B8R
convertible loan 2 Al AR E R
notes carried at AR
amortised cost =B
(Note) (Htat) - - 9,125 11,515
Note: The fair value of the liability component of i - IRREREE 2B REHH

convertible loan notes was determined assuming
redemption on 1 October 2011 and using an interest
rate of 5.34% in applying the discounted cash flow
method.

cTREENEREARE (BREN
AERTA) ZAFEDRIE
EEEMZEBEN  HUR
ReRENTATEBREER
MEXHMEERIBERRA
RAMEE o BIA B DR
ZMETAEME  RVFERE
MBEEEEN (=B’
B) mikEr

BRINKRMAFAES  RRBE
ERRERRMBRERALE
ZEMEENERAGREE

MAFEDBRIRR-F——
F+A-HEEMEE R
EBRERRSR T AR KA
5.34% 2 F & o

T-ZFEFEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—TF+—-A=1+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable:

e |evel 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

o |evel 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices); and

e level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Financial liabilities L y=Ri

Conversion options embedded ~ AT EREE 2
in convertible loan notes MR IR AR 1

Convertible notes designated EERERATEIA
as at fair value through Bk TR
profit or loss ZiR

Total BEt

There were no financial assets and liabilities classified
as level 1 and 2 as at 31 December 2010 and 2009.

7. ERIA (&)
() EMITARZLNFEGE)

RGBT A FEZ A F
EitE

TREHRDFZARFEERE
AENSRIANN  HRA
BREAFERENR—E2Z4:

¢ F-RATEHEDAH
RAEESEERERTS
Ak AR E AL

s F_RAVEFENRSE
—MEARNEESN BE
EXBEER (AER)
& (BERITE) B
BAREBGL K

s F=RAVEFEIFA
THRRBEABREMSHE
(BZBEEHARB)NE
EFRENBETESS -

2010 2009
Level 3 Level 3
B=R B4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
- 25,079
26,830 30,516
26,830 55,595

—E-EER-_ZBEAE
ZR=1+—R tELHE
REBIEAF—BEE—



7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMNE

7. e@MIA(E)

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurements

of financial liabilities

Opening balance

Issued during the year

Interest payable
Gains recognised
in profit or loss

Converted during the year

Closing balance

Bk
FNETT
FERALE
PR R
Z Wz
FREARK

HIR &R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE-—Z—T4+-A=1+—HIIFE

() EMITARZLNFEGE)

TREEBE=RLFETESY

#
2010

Convertible

notes

Conversion designated

options as at fair

embedded in value through

convertible profit or loss

loan notes EEARATE
TERERE FINERREZ Total
ZRERRE CIE: T ES #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THERT FTHET FHET
25,079 30,516 55,595
- 70,000 70,000
- (257) (257)
(3,914) (3,823) (7,737)
(21,165) (69,606) (90,771)

26,830

26,830

T-ZEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 EHZ-Z

7.

—EEFT_A=+-RALFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

7. EWMIH(E)

() EMITHEZRVE(R)

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurements PHEEE=RLTFETESE
of financial liabilities (continued) i (&)
2009
Convertible
notes
Conversion designated
options as at fair
embedded in  value through
convertible profit or loss
loan notes 1EEREATE
AMRERER JIABRERZ Total
2 NI AR e QEIES et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET FET
Opening balance Hi® i8R 27,490 - 27,490
Issued during the year FRELT - 26,200 26,200
Interest payable PR 2 - (27) (27)
Losses recognised KB ER
in profit or loss B8 83,294 29,251 112,545
Converted during the year AR (85,705) (24,908) (110,613)
Closing balance HIR A 64 25,079 30,516 55,595
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION WERSEEE

The directors review the Group’s internal financial
reporting and other information and also obtain
other relevant external information in order to assess
performance and allocate resources and operating
segment is identified with reference to these.

The directors consider that design, manufacture and sale
and provision of assembly services of telephones and
related equipment is the only major reportable operating
segment of the Group. Additional disclosure in relation
to segment information is not presented as the directors
assess the performance of the only major reportable
segment based on the consistent information as disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements.

EZENAEBRCABHBHRE R
HMEH  MRGEMBHERBIIRE
B RMARRERDEER M
LENRRRZR EXFmE o

i%%ﬁ TR HBERENR
i HERHEURREHEBERR
R RASENKE-—TRATH
HEENR ANEEREBHEAM
BRMETREN—EE R Mm%
TRAE-TBAETREDHE LR
Bo-AYE25E@OBEND
BIMKE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2010 EHZ =%

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

The total net segment income is equivalent to total
comprehensive income for the year as shown in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and
the total segment assets and total segment liabilities are
equivalent to total assets and total liabilities as shown in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Details of interest income, depreciation in relation to the
operating segment are disclosed in Notes 9 and 11 below
respectively.

In determining the Group’'s geographical segments,
revenue and results are attributed to the segments based
on the location of operation, and assets are attributed
to the segments based on the location of the assets. As
the Group’s major operations are located in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"), no further geographical
segment information is provided.

OTHER INCOME

HEVX BB RRE

Gain on disposal of property,

plant and equipment ZH&L
Interest income on bank deposits TERZMEBA
Sundry income /“\EIE\JW]\
Exchange differences, net PE 2= B H R

8.

REMBRRMNE

—EE+-A=+-RLFE

K@k BER (K)

AN BRRANBEREREEEA
Hﬁl/\%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁ$¢riﬁ%@\i‘
BOMOBEERERIRAEER
BARENG M BRRRAREN
BEERENARAS -

EBREELPENFERAETEN
HE DR T XK FIR11H

Ego

REEASE  MEDBE Wi
FREDREXZGAELME D E
N MEEARBEEEMEILM
ANENBR -BARAKECIER

BRURPEARKAME ((PE]) -
S AR (3 — 3R DR AR

HAt A
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET
120 -
12 306
1,905 1,910
621 -
2,658 2,216

T-ZFEFEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 EHZ-Z

10. FINANCE COSTS

11.

Interest on:
- bank and other borrowings
wholly repayable
within five years
— finance leases
Effective interest expense
on convertible loan notes
(Notes 25)

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

—EEFT_A=+-RALFE

ATNEREZHME
—ﬁmﬁiwiﬁgi
ZRITREMEE

—-pERE

RBRERERE
ZEBFBRY
(Bf5£25)

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Directors’ emoluments (Notes 12)
Other staff costs

Total employee benefits expense

Auditors’ remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised
as an expense

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

(Gain)/loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment

Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses [E ¥, (U &

BEEME (#at12)
H {8 TR

& 8 18 71| i 1 28

R E D &
FERARHER DX

nE - BER
RIEZITE
HENE  BER
Rz Rz /BR
)/ BRFE

10. BFEE AR &
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHET
939 1,845
- 15
440 6,665
1,379 8,525
1. xEEESE
AEEBBENR GA) T
I8 :
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#x FHET
2,814 1,340
60,074 36,446
62,888 37,786
680 680
164,488 45,760
3,377 2,507
(120) 7
(621) 152




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors
were as follows:

(a) Directors’ emoluments
Year ended 31 December 2010

12.EEREEME
ENRENTEESSAZHMENT :

(a) EEM%
RE-E-SF+-A=1-
B LR

Other emoluments

Rt &

Contributions

Salaries to retirement
and other benefits
benefits schemes Total
Fees ek EHREF  emoluments
Be Hitn @Al aHEIER ame
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TERL TERL TER
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Malcolm Stephen Malcolm Stephen
Jacobs-Paton Jacobs-Patont - 900 9 909
Mr. Zhu Guangping RETRE - 600 12 612
Mr. Ip Chi Ming (Note (j)) EXHRRAE W) - - = -
Mr. Cheung Chi Wai (Note (i) REERE W) - 659 8 667
Non-executive directors HFHITEE
Mr. Leung Shek Kong RHRFE 103 - - 103
Mr. Mau Chung Yin, Paul (Note (i)~ BB %4 (H12ii) 43 - - 43
Mr. Song Shufa (Note (iv)) REBEE W itv) - - - =
Independent non-executive directors BV R TEE
Dr. Hui Ka Wah Ronnie AREBE 125 - - 125
Mr. Ho Kwan Tat EERE 125 - - 125
Mr. Wong Kean Li BXELAE 105 - - 105
Mr. Lo Chi Ming Anthony (Note (vi) %58 % & (K1) 125 - - 125
626 2,159 29 2,814

T-ZFEFEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—T4F+—-A=1+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

12. EEREEME ()

(a) EEM< (&)

BE-TEAL+-AS+-
AL

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2009

Other emoluments

Ethdie
Contributions
Salaries  to retirement
and other benefits Total
Fees benefits schemes emoluments
GeR RIRAEA
ik A7 RSN ame
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAL TAL TAL TAL

paywi saibojouyda) diodung

R IR 3 % 3]

Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Malcolm Stephen Malcolm Stephen

Jacobs-Paton Jacobs-Paton%t £ - - - -
Mr. Cheung Chi Wai RkEREE - 792 12 804
Mr. Zhu Guangping RETRE - 100 2 102
Non-executive directors FHITEE
Dato’ Dr. Wong Sin Just (Note (v) ~ SEBEREBL (K1) - - - =
Mr. Leung Shek Kong RHREE - 90 - 90
Mr. Mak Chee Bun (Note (1) BHERE (W) - 14 - 14
Mr. Song Shufa (Note (iv)) RE B A& Witv) - = = -
Independent non-executive directors B FHTEE
Dr. Hui Ka Wah Ronnie AREEE 110 - - 110
Mr. Ho Kwan Tat MEERE 110 - - 110
Mr. Wong Kean Li BRERE 90 - - 90
Mr. Lo Chi Ming Anthony (Note (vi) % EB % & (K vi) 20 - - 20

330 996 14 1,340



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes:

(i)  Appointed on 25 February 2010.
(i)  Resigned on 17 August 2010.
(iii) Appointed on 24 August 2010.

(iv) Appointed on 24 February 2009 and resigned on 24
August 2010.

(v)  Resigned on 27 October 20009.
(vi) Resigned on 24 February 2009.

(vii) Appointed on 27 October 2009

No directors waived any emoluments during the years
ended 31 December 2010 and 20009.

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, three (2009: one) was director of the
Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining
two (2009: four) individuals were as follows:

Salaries and other benefits FehHEMER
Contributions to retirement  RKE 5+ 24 &
benefits schemes

12. EEREEME ()

(a) EEM < (&)

Hfat

() R-E-—TE-F-+H1H
BZRE-

(i) W-T-TENA+TLAR
e

(i) R=E—FFNA=+mA
BR{E-

vy RZZEZNF_A=-+HWEH
EEEIN-_ZE—ZE)\ A
—tIOHET-

vy RZEZNFF+A=++tH
BT o

viy RZEENF-_A=-+WMA
BT ©

(i) RZEENFE+A=-++tH
BZRAT-

BEEENEE_T-ZTFR-F
ENFT_A=T—HILEEERE
EAME -

(b) EEMS

EARERIEZERMEZAL
ER =R (ZEENF: —
Z2)RARAIZES HM =
R EXABEEZERS - &
BME(CETAF WA A

TZMemT
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHET
1,490 1,841
24 48
1,514 1,889

T-ZFEFEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—T4F+—-A=1+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 12.EEREEME (B)

paywi saibojouyda) diodung

R IR 3 % 3]

(continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (continued)

Their emoluments were within #Z 72 #& B R
the following bands: AT &8
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£ 21,000,000/ 7T

No compensation was paid to the above individuals
for loss of office during the year ended 31 December
2010 and 20009.

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax: BVEARLIA -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENENR
Under-provision in prior year EFRE IR

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income
Tax at 25% (for both years). Taxation arising in other
jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
relevant jurisdictions.

(b) EEME (&)
2010 2009

REZE-_Z—ZTFER_FTTH
F+-_A=+—HItFE 1
Em Fat A £ ATBERE R (E o

13. FrE R i

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$000
FERT FTAT
- 104

BENGH DR EMEFE 2B
JE R Bt R R B K16.5%T & °

B BT B D R A R B B B #2225 %
ZREGRPREPCEMER - Hib
AEERELE ZHENZRBBEE
BEZBEIHEASE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZ-Z— T4 +-A=+—HI-FE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss
per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

as follows:

Loss before tax

Tax at the domestic income

tax rate of 16.5%
(2009: 16.5%)
Tax effect of expenses not

deductible for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not
taxable for tax purpose
Utilisation of tax losses

previously not recognised

Tax effect of tax losses
not recognised

Effect of different tax rates of

overseas subsidiaries

Under-provision in prior year

Tax charge for the year

BR 75 A1 &5 18

BAMPTETE16.5%
(ZZEZTNF 1 16.5%)
TR ZMIE

R R REHIR
XM BB E

R LT TN
ZWAZH B E

B A EHARER
ZHIEEE

RERZBIEEE
ZHBRE

BN B A R R R
-7

EFEREBRR

AFEEREAX M

At 31 December 2010, the Group had unused tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$249,661,000
(2009: HK$232,756,000) available for offset against
future profits that may be carried forward indefinitely. At
31 December 2010, the Group also had unused tax losses
arising in the PRC of approximately HK$12,000,000 (2009:
HK$1,400,000) that will expire in one to five years for
offset against future taxable profits. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses at
31 December 2009 and 2010 due to the unpredictability

of future profit streams.

13. BB < (8)

AEEHELHEEAZAKER
ZEBZHERENT

2010 2009

HK$ 000 HK$'000

TAERT TAT

(18,563) (145,371)

(3,063) (23,986)

2,355 20,159

(3,822) (1,114)

(49) (104)

5,498 3,889

(919) 1,156

- 104

- 104

RZE—ZTE+_A=+—H &
%Eﬁéé%i%@%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ
£249,661,0008 T (ZEZ NLF -
232,756,000/ 7T) © AJ L {EHK 8
AR A MO ERBEE - N =T
—ZEF+-_A=+—R8 AEERX
BEREFB 2 AHABEBED
#12,000,0008 T (ZEZTNF:

1,400,000/ 7T) - A] fit A {E K 88 K
KafmER —ERFREE - i
AR R g K7t 2 A S8R - At 3P

B _TTNFR_T—ZTF+Z
ﬁ_+ BzABARBEEBERER
ERERIBEE -

T-ZFEFEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRNE

—EEFT_A=+-RALFE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 EHZ-Z

14. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended

31 December 2010 and 2009.

15. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company

is based on the following data:

Earnings

Loss for the purpose of basic
loss per share
(Loss for the year attributable
to equity holders of
the Company)
Effect of dilutive potential
ordinary shares:
Interest on convertible
loan notes
Fair value change on
conversion options
embedded in
convertible loan notes
Fair value change on
convertible notes
designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

Loss for the purpose of diluted
loss per share

&7

AR EER
EXER

(RRBBAFEE A
BHEAFEEER)

BELZERZ

BEye:
ARBEREE
ZF B
TREEREE
2 NI B R
ZRTEEES

BERERATEIA
Btk BB ER

2 AT ESH

Rt BEEREEER
21%%%5

14. BE

&:I:—;_EF‘QE&—? 7j‘|4£‘5—'—_
A=T-BEFEYERNKEZ

IR RLR, o

15. BRE B

ARBEBRAKAEARGERE
AREEBEIREN THEHE

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRET
(18,563) (145,475)
440 =
(3,914) =
(3,823) =
(25,860) (145,475)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

G BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE (continued)

B # B

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ARGTEERERER

ordinary shares for the purpose 2 EER
of basic loss per share INHE 15 2
Effect of dilutive potential BHELAR BELE -
ordinary shares:
Share options R
Convertible loan notes ARBRERER

Weighted average number of ARTEGREEER

ordinary shares for the purpose 2EBR
of diluted loss per share N 35 25

For the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2009, the
computation of diluted loss per share did not assume the
exercise of the outstanding share options of the Company
as these share options have an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic loss per share for the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the computation
of diluted loss per share did not assume the potential
conversion of convertible loan notes which had an anti-
dilutive effect on the basis loss per share for the year.

15. BRE 8 (&)

2010 2009
‘000 ‘000

TR T
2,560,830 1,731,104
542,438 =
3,103,268 1,731,104

REE-_T—ZTFER-_ZTTNEF
+ZA=+—HLFEMmMS @R
ARBIZRKIFEEREHEFE 2
FREABBAREEYE At
HESRBEBEBENBRRZERE
BETSEITE -

RBE_TEAFT-A=1+—H
LFEEME AR ABRBRERRE
HAFEZBREXABRAREE
T8 RUFESREEERRL
TMRRABEERRE 2 BERAK -

T-ZFEFEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—Z4F+-A=1+—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ -BERRKE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
improve- and
Plant and ments  equipment Motor
machinery HE i vehicles Total
BER#E ES T S VET AE aE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TR TR TR TR TR

Cost AR

At 1 January 2009 RZEENF-A-H 1,215 219 7477 3,509 12,420
Exchange adjustments HNERE 1 - 4 - 5
Additions AE 1,059 3,341 1,853 - 6,253
Disposals ik - (219) (102) (975) (1,296)
At 31 December 2009 RZEENF+ZA=t-H 2275 3,341 9,232 2,534 17,382
Exchange adjustments R 97 - 231 2 350
Additions AE 1,557 - 385 685 2,627
Disposals & - - (1,290) (478) (1.768)
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-ZETZA=1t-H 3929 3,341 8,558 2,763 18,591

Depreciation and impairment  TE&H{E

At 1 January 2009 RZEENF-A-H 558 219 2,102 2,439 5318
Exchange adjustments HNERE - - 2 1 3

Provided for the year RERRE 370 42 174 353 2,507
Eliminated on disposals HE R - (219) (87) (721) (1,027)
At 31 December 2009 RZZENFTZA=T-H 928 4 3,759 2,072 6,801

Exchange adjustments AR 40 - 156 17 213

Provided for the year AEREE 570 501 1,99 310 3,377
Eliminated on disposals it E 3 - - (1,269) (478) (1,747)
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-ZE+ZA=1t-H 1538 543 4,642 1,921 8,644
Carrying amounts BEE

At 31 December 2010 RZE-FF+-A=t-H 239 2,798 3,916 842 9,947

At 31 December 2009 RZEENF+-A=1t-A 1,347 3,299 5,473 462 10,581




16.

17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

20% - 30%
Over the shorter of
the term of
the lease, or 15%
15%
20% - 30%

Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

INTEREST IN/TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES FROM A JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITY

FLEMREZKAR
DMERBRBE (K1)

Cost of unlisted investment
Share of post-acquisition
losses (Note)

Details of the Group’s jointly controlled entity at 31
December 2010 are as follows:

16. % - BE KRR (K)

L SRR AR BT
FEYEBRRHEHE

W E R as 20%Z30%

MEMEEE EHEBESY
15% 2 8
k)

B EERZE 15%

"B 20%ZE30%

17. R—BE8 Rz ER JE
W—BEEERAAESRAK
H fih fE W FIE

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAT
44,357 44,357
(44,357) (44,357)

R_ZE—ZF+_-_A=+—H K
SBAERRZHBET

Proportion of nominal

Place of
Form of registration/
business operation
Name of entity structure 31
BEDNEAB EBRBEES Qe
Shenzhen Guo Wei Limited The PRC
Electronics Co., Ltd liability
("Guo Wei") company
ARIYIE B E F BREFERR HHE
BRRQA
([EE])

value of registered

capital indirectly
held by the Group
AEEMEZEZ  Principal activities
AMEAZEHELRS FTEEH
46%  Manufacture of

telephones and
related products

BUEE R ER

T-ZFEFEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—T4F+—-A=1+—HIFE

17. INTEREST IN/TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES FROM A JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITY (continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s jointly controlled entity (which is accounted
for using the equity method), based on its unaudited
management accounts, is set out below:

Non-current assets FERBEE

Current assets mMBEE

Current liabilities mEafE

Income WA

Expenses i

Loss for the year attributable rEBRGAFE
to the Group BB

Net assets attributable AEERIGEEFE

to the Group

Note: The Group has discontinued recognising its share of
further losses of Guo Wei once the Group’s share of losses
of Guo Wei equals the Group's interest in Guo Wei. If Guo
Wei subsequently reports profits, the Group will resume
recognising its share of those profits only after its share of
the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

17. R—BEE DRIz ER
W—BEELNAEZRARAR
H bW FE (F)
REAEEASARZ REBRE
BER  BRZATLNER G
ERIE Y AR EHIIMT

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
202,683 90,498
189,174 285,332
(490,048) (452,677)
772,984 313,371
(790,974) (337,937)

Wit AEBEREHER 2 BRER
AREHEBR CERE  RILRE
REEBERCE-—FEHR &
BRAREGEN A5ERE
PR M A F R R IR Z A
BREMEEIREEBE %S0
R e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZ-Z— T4 +-A=+—HI-FE

17. INTEREST IN/TRADE AND OTHER 17. A—REE& AT 21%/@

RECEIVABLES FROM A JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITY (continued)
The amounts of unrecognised share of loss of Guo Wei,

based on its unaudited management accounts, are as
follows:

Unrecognised share of loss of REFRBEREN
a jointly controlled entity —BeEnrzERE
for the year

Cumulative unrecognised share REtRHEREN
of losses of a jointly —R&ERAIZER

controlled entity

Trade and other receivables from a jointly controlled entity
represent the net balance arising from purchase of goods
from Guo Wei, purchase of raw materials on behalf of
Guo Wei and sale of goods and provision of assembly
service to Guo Wei. The amount is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

At 31 December 2010, the amount due from the jointly
controlled entity (before provision for impairment) was
approximately HK$242,194,000 (2009: HK$247,333,000).
No additional impairment loss in respect of the amount
due from the jointly controlled entity was recognised by
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 and
2009. The Group takes into consideration the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to
receive when determining the impairment loss.

K-HEERAEZ KK
Hito Bk E ()

BREERAEEREERE K
EREEERZBEREEMT

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
(8,275) (11,300)
(180,469) (172,194)

FH&ZE\E’ATT%@E RN H A JE UK
FARKRABARBEER  KKEH
TX%%FMM&WIW%%ED
RERERBAMEL CERFE-
R %Ei%ﬂﬁi#ﬁ R B RARER
B (E &

RZE—ZTF+= H +—H &
WZaE & RA 2 RIE CRERER
) 4 7,%242,194,000,%73 (ZEZ
FUEE 1 247,333,0008 L) - KEE
REBEEZZ-—ZFR_ZTNF
+=A _Jr—Eliir“jHﬂfF
WZEERRRIBEREIINRERS
B A:%lmm@maa\ 2EE
BEHBEBR B RRRER 2R
fg o

T-ZFEFEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BZ—Z— T4 +-A=+—HI-45E

18. TRADE, BILL AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and bill receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts 5 : FBR &4

Tax reserve certificates EFH
Refundable deposit paid for EZBENRB AR

proposed acquisition ME Xz &
of subsidiaries REES
Other receivables, net of Hh & U R IE
allowance for doubtful debts gk %Eﬁﬁéﬁ
Total trade, bill and other e E 5 iR
receivables /Hﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂl IEZ?@%E

The Group allows an average credit period from 30 to
75 days to its trade customers. The following is an aged
analysis of trade and bill receivables (net of allowance for
doubtful debts) at the end of the reporting period:

0 - 30 days TE=1H
- 60 days =+—EAXTH
61 — 90 days AtT—ZEATA

The average credit period on sales of goods is from 30 to
75 days. Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Credit limits attributed to
customers are reviewed by management.

FBUWE Z &R R ERER

CRURER

18. EREZ RN  BREER

H ft B W 7R

2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TRET
16,098 6,021
(7.068) (5,266)
9,030 755
2,601 2,601
5,000 -
8,289 3,102
24,920 6,458

AEERTERIRPZFHEEY
R=tEtTHR -FHEKES
Rk R E R (IR RREE) R

WG MR ERE 2R DM

2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$°000

TER TAET

8,507 525

306 200

217 30

9,030 755

HEEmZFPHEEHR=TE
tTAR -ARERERNEMHE
PRIGRFGERPZEEERY

BiTH&ZEPZEE

cEPRE

BREEREHEEER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

18. TRADE, BILL AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Trade receivable disclosed above include amounts which
are past due at the end of the reporting period but
against which the Group has not recognised an allowance
for doubtful receivables because there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are
still considered recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances nor does it have a legal right of offset against
any amounts owed by the Group to the counterparty.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of the year ~ F &%

Impairment losses recognised RWE ZHERZBEHER
on trade receivables WEEE

Balance at end of the year FIREER

At 31 December 2010, the Group had provided for
impairment loss against the individually impaired trade
receivables, all of which were aged over 90 days and were
past due at the end of the reporting period. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

18. EREZ RN  BREER

Hit WA (&)

IXHBEZREESRRBRERNR
SHRERECERMENEEY
8 7 Atk e 2 B MR R IR R PR R 2 K
B RARBHESTEZERELERY
BEAEHURANAINE - KE
B3 4 ot A R B E (R
FEMEEMRERR  TEAXE
B T H 477 2 E R SRR
R TERER

rERBE22H
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
5,266 5,266
1,802 -
7,068 5,266

RZE—ZTE+ZA=1+—H" 'K
SECHERNNECELE SRR
ELHEBERE AEFEZER
REBNLTHE MRREHBER
BELBBHRM NREBEIW &St
ZREBEFHEMAERR -

T-ZFEFEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—Z4F+-A=1+—HIFE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES WITH INSURANCE 19. EREZEVRE SRR

paywi saibojouyda) diodung

ERA IR 3% 2]

COVERAGE

The Group allows an average credit period from 30 to
75 days to its trade customers. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables with insurance coverage at
the reporting date:

0 - 30 days TE=1H
31 - 60 days =+—EAXTH

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Credit limits attributed to customers
are reviewed reqgularly. None of the trade receivable with
insurance coverage is past due or impaired and these
receivable has a good credit quality attributable under
internal assessment by the Group.

In order to draw the Group's trade receivables in advance,
the Group borrowed from the banks and arranged
insurance coverage on the trade receivables of the Group’s
major customers. The Group can assign the right to receive
the proceeds from the receivables and the insurance
compensation to the banks. The trade receivables and
the advances drawn thereon are derecognised upon
settlement from the customers or receipt from the
insurance compensation if the customers do not make the
settlement.

ARERTESEPZTHERY
R=TEZ+THH -BHAERRZ
FBWE ZEFNRE B 2Rk D
iU

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$°000
TER THT
882 -
7,672 -
8,554 -

AEEREREMHELA G LT
BERPZEEERLATHZE
PZEERE -FFESNEERER
BETEHRS - MESRERZENR
BHRFABHRTIRE  RE
A&RE 2z AEBEE - b FERFUR
ZEEERERK -

BTEAYDALBEZREEE SR
F o AKERRITHERYE A EKR
AEEFERFPZEZRFRER
o AN B AL 59 15 BN aZ & e W 3K
EzWEMEARRREEEET
RIT ZERUESERREIZ
ERWESERZBRDIREL
T (BRPLEMT) WERBRE
BRI FTER ©



20.

21.

22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 EHZ =%

BILL RECEIVABLE DISCOUNTED WITH FULL
RECOURSE

The Group allows an average credit period from 30 to
75 days to its trade customers. The following is an aged
analysis of bills receivable discounted with full recourse at
the reporting date:

0 - 30 days TE=1H

Bills receivable discounted with full recourse and the
advances drawn on bills receivable discounted with full
recourse will be derecognised when the banks received
cash from the customers. On derecognition of bills
receivable discounted with full recourse, the difference
between their carrying amounts and the cash received by
the banks is recognised in profit or loss.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range
from 0.001% to 0.36% (2009: 0.01% to 0.15%) per
annum.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables FERTE 5 BRI
Other payables and accrued H & BOE K
charges B

20.

21.

22,

—EE+-A=+-RLFE

MEZHEREZEWRER
Z5
AEBHRTFESEPZTEHEES
A=t+Z++HB-BHEWMAEZE
BREZEKFBEENREASH
RO

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRET TRET
5,735 =

MEEHEREZRUMARER
BxZENE2EERE B
REFEZBFDINBIIREPER
BIRERR IEHER o PR B
AEAEREZRKERERR
HEmERRTAKEICRENE
BIR B s

BITEREES

RITHEBET SR B FH X
£0.001%%0.36% (ZEZHF:
0.01%%0.15%) °

BNEZRRREMENSRE
2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR THET

5,475 4,680

38,928 53,931

44,403 58,611

T-ZFEFEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—Z4F+-A=1+—HIFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

23.

24.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the

end of the reporting period:

0 - 30 days TE=TH
31 - 60 days =+—ZEXTH
Over 90 days AT—ZEATH

ADVANCE DRAWN ON BILL RECEIVABLE
DISCOUNTED WITH FULL RECOURSE

The interest on the Group’s advance drawn on bill
receivable discounted with full recourse is charged at rate
3.04% per annum.

AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS/A RELATED
COMPANY

The amounts due to directors are unsecured, bear interest
at 5.25% per annum and repayable on demand.

The amount due to a related company is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

22. BNESRAK EH RN

23.

24,

(&)

FRRNEIERRNBEHRHER

2 BREc AT AT

2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET

495 -

300 -

4,680 4,680

5,475 4,680
BExHE2EEREZER

HBREE B

AEEBEXMEZHERE RN
AR R iR 2 BRIR3.04% 2 F M X

AR e

ENES  -HAHREAH
A

BENEZEFAEAEEN  K5.25%
ZENERGFABRBRERANEGEE

EN-—HAEBELAREARER
B R B RARENRAKER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G BRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

25. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES 25. TR RE

The Convertible Notes

Pursuant to a conditional best effort placing agreement
dated 13 December 2007 entered into between the
Company and SBI E2-Capital (HK) Limited (as the placing
agent), the placing of the three-year 0.5% coupon
convertible notes in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$67,900,000 (the “Convertible Notes”) was
completed on 28 March 2008. The gross proceeds
from the placing of the Convertible Notes amounted to
approximately HK$67,900,000 which were intended to
be deployed as general working capital. The Convertible
Notes are secured by a charge over the 46% equity
interest held indirectly by the Company in Guo Wei.

The Convertible Notes bear interest at the rate of 0.5%
per annum payable annually in arrears, and are convertible
into the Company’s ordinary shares at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.10 per conversion share (subject to
adjustments) at any time starting from 90 days after the
date of issue until the maturity date. The maturity date
of the Convertible Notes will be the date falling on the
third anniversary of the date of issue. Any unredeemed
and unconverted Convertible Notes shall be redeemed at
100% of the outstanding principal amount in cash.

The Company is entitled, by giving at least 30 business
days’ written notice to the holders of the Convertible
Notes to redeem the outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Notes (in whole or in part).

On 16 July 2008, the Convertible Notes with principal
amount of HK$15,300,000 were converted at the
conversion price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the
issue of 153,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.
On 12 and 29 August 2008, the Convertible Notes with
aggregate principal amount of HK$34,000,000 were
converted at the conversion price of HK$0.10 per share,
resulting in the issue of 340,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each.

TRREE

IR ¥ A 2 A7) BASBI E2-Capital (HK)
Limited EREEERE) R =TT
+E+-A+=BiIZHIEE
BENIkREhE EEXSEER
67,900,000/ 7L 2 = F HH0.5% % 8
TRREER((TRARRE]) — =02
RZEENF=ZA=-F+N\BEK -
RETRREEMERBLEN
£67,900,0007 7T+ Ty &t & A 1E—
REEED A BRBREBUXLDA
M A 0 B E46% R AR L
ZIRRIEEA o

AR ERZ T EF0.5%2 F K5t
B AEBFENE  XARETHY
B NTHE EERHAR/LZ
EMEREA - %8RS 70.10
BLZNEBIRE (A TRE) &
BMAARRLER AT RRERZ
AR AETHMER R =BT
PASRE SO NAEY) F ST A
BEBANRGEREEAEE L
100% &M -

ARBAEREBRARKERRA
ABEZRL=FTHEEEZEANERA
MmEEASRBEREZAEBESNS
B (2 EBlD)

RZZEZNFELA+X B K&
88 7315,300,000/% 7T 2 A A R R 1R
BEESROIOBETZRRERR
2 7)) A I 8 17153,000,0008% &
BREECIGETZEBR KT
ENFNATZ_BR=-_TNLA &
& #2858 434,000,000 7T 2 AT A%
ZRERER0I0BTTZ BB BR
A% + AN 72 A] A I 8% 17340,000,0008%
FREEI0ETZ @K -

T-ZFEFEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—T4F+—-A=1+—HIFE

25. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued) 25. IR REREE (8)

paywi saibojouyda) diodung

R IR 3 % 3]

The Convertible Notes (continued)

On 6 May 2009, the Convertible Notes with principal
amount of HK$18,600,000 were converted at the
conversion price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the
issue of 186,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

The Fully Underwritten Bonds

Pursuant to a conditional fully underwritten placing
agreement dated 11 July 2008 entered into between
the Company and Tanrich Capital Limited (as the placing
agent), the placing of the three-year 0.5% coupon
unsecured convertible bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$50,000,000 (the “Fully Underwritten
Bonds”) was completed on 2 October 2008. The gross
proceeds from the placing of the Fully Underwritten Bonds
amounted to approximately HK$50,000,000 which were
intended to be deployed as debt repayment and general
working capital.

The Fully Underwritten Bonds bear interest at the rate
of 0.5% per annum payable annually in arrears, and are
convertible into the Company’s ordinary shares at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.10 per conversion share (subject
to adjustments) at any time after the date of issue to the
maturity date. The maturity date of the Fully Underwritten
Bonds will be the date falling on the third anniversary of
the date of issue. Any unredeemed and unconverted Fully
Underwritten Bonds shall be redeemed at 100% of the
outstanding principal amount in cash.

TBRREE (&)

R-ZZAFERAANB A&EA
18,600,000 T2 AT MR BB 1%
BROIOBIT 2 BBREXRR  AA
A A It %% 17186,000,000/% & i% @
010872 @R

2HBHEES

BREARAREIUTBERR A A
(EARERB)R=_ZZTNEFELA
T—BIUZERHEEZABHEES
W& - BeE A< # % 450,000,000
BILZ ZFH0S5%ZEREIKAT
BhEF((2EHEHEES]) —FE
R_ZZENE+R-_HBEXK K&
F2HBHEFIMERBLENA
50,000,000/ 7T+ JhsT El B IEEE
R—MEEES -

FHEHEHESFKREF05% X
AECABENE WA RBITH
HEZHHBE AL 2ERNKRA -
BEERBBREH0.10B T 2L
RE (I THR)ERARAR LA
k- 2EBHEEFLINMAAKAE
TRHEESR=BF 2 - FAX
BRI AGRZ2EBHESFAMN
BeEREERETE Z100%EME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

25. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued)

The Fully Underwritten Bonds (continued)

At the request of the Company, the Fully Underwritten
Bonds may be early redeemed at the outstanding principal
amount of the Fully Underwritten Bonds (in whole or in
part) at any time by giving at least 30 business days’ prior
written notice to the holder(s) of the Fully Underwritten
Bonds. The holder(s) of the Fully Underwritten Bonds can
within 15 business days after the date of the notice of
early redemption convert any outstanding amount of the
Fully Underwritten Bonds in multiples of HK$10,000 into
the conversion shares at the conversion price. Upon the
expiry of 15 business days after the date of the notice
of early redemption, the Company shall redeem the
outstanding principal amount of the Fully Underwritten
Bonds as set out in the notice of early redemption.

On 14 July 2009, the Fully Underwritten Bonds with
principal amount of HK$1,750,000 were converted at the
conversion price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the
issue of 17,500,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 26 August 2009, the Fully Underwritten Bonds with
principal amount of HK$6,500,000 were converted at the
conversion price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the
issue of 65,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 1, 8 and 25 September 2009, the Fully Underwritten
Bonds with aggregate principal amount of HK$29,250,000
were converted at the conversion price of HK$0.10 per
share, resulting in the issue of 292,500,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 29 March 2010, the Fully Underwritten Bonds with
principal amount of HK$12,500,000 were converted at
the conversion price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the
issue of 125,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

25. R REREE (F)

EEEHEES (B)

EARRENX  KRABA@BERE
HEHEFRFEAZLR L= +E
LEAMNEAEMBANMNERE
BMEEEHBHESF L REBELNSR
(2HBH)RFEDNZEABH
BF - 2EBHEEFFAEANTRE
FEEOAMNABENTREZEEA
N ERRESZEREES 2T
MAEEAXELE (A510,000% T
ZEH)BE - NREELRANA
Mt mTAELERE  AQA
BELCREBERBAMIZZHEE
HESZREERNSHE -

RZEBETNFLtA+MA  A&8
/1,750,000 T2 2 HBHEHES
BRER0.10B T 2 R EHRAL -
A7) A I % 1717,500,0000% & %
H{E0. 108 T2 L@ -

RZZEZNFNAZ-+H X%
28 56,500,0008 T2 2 EBHEES
ERER0I0B T 2R BB -
X 5 A It % 1765,000,0000% & A%
E{E0. 108 Tz L @Ak -

RZZETZNFAA-HB NBRK
ZTHRA A8 R29,250,000
ALZEEBHEEBEFEEREM0.10
BT BB R - AR B L 3
17292,500,000% & X E fH0.10/8 7T
ZEBR -

RZZE-ZTE=A-+hHB" K
% % 412,500,00058 7T 2 & H & 8
BAECIKRER0.10B T2 BREHR
BR - A2 A A I8 17125,000,0008%
FREE0E T LB

T-ZFEFEH
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25. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued)

The net proceeds received from the issue of the convertible
loan notes contain the following components that are
required to be separately accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation”
and HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”:

(i) Liability component of the convertible loan notes
which is carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method; and

(i) Conversion options embedded in the convertible
loan notes (representing the noteholders’ options
to convert the convertible loan notes into equity of
the Company) which are separately accounted for
as derivative financial liabilities and measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss.

The directors of the Company had assessed the fair
values of the early redemption options embedded in the
convertible loan notes (representing the Company’s option
to early redeem the convertible loan notes) and considered
their fair values were insignificant.

25. R REREE (F)

HET IR ENEE MR E 2 Fr
BREFEEIUTIHG  ARE
EECHEENRI&MIE:
E2I BB ERFEINR &8
TEH: BRRAEIMHIAARK:

() ARRERRERIAEDHMN
ERMNERRBHEAAT K
K

(i) AIMBERREZ AEREE
REEZBFAAAKIRKE
e 3 B ARAYNGIL: Sl
B DETEEREEND
HAK ZRAVEFE MR
FEEPNBEER

ARAEFEFEARRERRER
ZAERFPEOE(KKRARQEA
REBOUMRERRE CRERE)
ZAVE BREHEELAFELAE
N



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The movements of the liability component of the
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

25. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued)

convertible loan notes for the year are set out below:

Liability component
at 31 December 2008

Conversion into shares
Interest charged
Interest payable

Liability component
at 31 December 2009

Conversion into shares
Interest charged
Interest payable

Liability component
at 31 December 2010

RZBEZNF+=A
=t+—HzB8EHH

B nBn
MEXH
ANEIR)

RZZE—ZTF+_A
=+—HZEEHH

25. TRAREREE (&)
HRREFEECEERHRAER
2EBHIIMT :

The Fully The

Underwritten Convertible
Bonds Notes Total
2EHBHESF TERRE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT FETT
30,467 8,363 38,830
(26,021) (10,124) (36,145)
4,872 1,793 6,665
(193) (32) (225)
9,125 - 9,125
(9,550) = (9,550)
440 - 440

T-ZFEFEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—TF+—-A=1+—HIFE

25. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued) 25. I RREREE (&)
The movements of the conversion options embedded in MR ERZE 7 NEBRRENE
the convertible loan notes for the year are set out below: N2 EEEHT :
The Fully The
Underwritten Convertible
Bonds Notes Total
2HEHES THERRE #at

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THET

Fair value RZEZENF+H

at 31 December 2008 =+—HZRY¥E 22,690 4,800 27,490
Conversion into shares Bk n (73,673) (12,032) (85,705)
Changes in fair value REBRERZ

recognised in profit or loss ~NEEZ 76,062 7,232 83,294
Fair value RZEENFE+H

at 31 December 2009 =t—BZRrYTE 25,079 - 25,079
Conversion into shares BHRARN (21,165) - (21,165)
Changes in fair value RIBRERZ

recognised in profit or loss RNEEZE (3,914) - (3,914)
Fair value RZE—ZTF+H

at 31 December 2010 =+—HAZz2R ¥E - - -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE-—Z—T4+-A=1+—HIIFE

25. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued)

The fair values of the conversion options embedded in the
convertible loan notes were determined at the respective
dates of issue, at each conversion date and at the end
of the reporting period using the binomial model by
reference to an independent professional valuation. The
inputs into the model were as follows:

At date of

A3 conversionon 14 conversion on 26

The Fully Underwriten Bonds Atdateofissie ~ December 2008 uly 2009
#-380%
i L3 ththe
2pakEs 3R tR=t-B ZERRE
Pricipel amount of the Rl PEEkER
Undenwriten Bonds pLS3 ] BESO00000ET  HSSO000ET  WITSO0NET M
Share price h& HS007ET HES00% T HS0.22E T
Comerson pice a5R HS0.10%7 HS010%T HS0.10% T
ypeced felote ) el 3yes & 275 years 1y
Risk-fee nterestrte e () 2055% 0.786% 039%
Broected voltity e () 103% 12652% 110325%
Fal vlue of the comerson aptions
enbeded n te Fuly
Undenwrten Bonds HES20, 180002 HKS2L60000ET  HKSSL67S 0002 K
At date of
conversion on
The Convertible Notes At date of issue 16 July 2008
RZZRNE
tRtAR
TEEZE ] ZERAS
Principal amount of the ERRE A28
Convertible Notes HK$67,900,0007  HK$15,300,000% 70
Share price k& HK$0.127 7 HK$0.14 0
Conversion price HRE HK$0.10E 7T HKS0.10%7E
Expected life (Note (3)) BHER 3 years 270 years &
Risk-free interest rate (More (8)  EBRS 1549% 2.608%
Expected volatilty (Vote (¢)) BERE W20 74.3% 86.70%
Fair value of the conversion RREEZAE
options embedded in the AREZATHE
Convertible Notes HK$44,109,0007  HK$58,400,000/% 7T

25. AR RERFE (F)

At date of

BZAERBREND

FE DREBZRTEY RER
B EA R I 5 B A RS A — IR

REREE

EHC2EBHUEE

fhfE - RAZBRAZHEBEMT ¢

At date of At dateof

conversionon 1~~~ conversion on §

August 2009~ September 2009 September 2009
#-3%0% iy i LY

NE=tAA
28538

HS030% T
0107
L years
0512%
106233%

At date of
conversion on
12 August 2008
H-EENE
NAtZH
ZERAH

HK$13,500,000% 7T
HK$0.12% T
HK$0.10% T
262 years

2.649%
88.65%

HK$36,300,000 7

1A-R LI
28538 pLLE

KGSO0MOET  HKSBON0IET  HKSG250008T

B0 253 T HrS028% 7
HS0.10%7 HS0.10% 7
1WyeanE Wyeas £

0518% 0482%

14TSB000ET  HKST 300003 HKSB073.000%7

At date of
conversion on
29 August 2008
HoEENE
NAZtAAR
ARAS

HK$20,500,000%
HK$0.08% 10
HKS$0.10% 7T
258 years &

2413%
91.21%

HK$17,100,0007% 70

At date of
conversion on 25

At date of

M3 conversionon 29

September 2009 December 2009 March 2010

HogepE

#-8-8f

1A=1ER HoB8hE ZA=thA
JRRER  t2AIt-B 28538

HSIDOOOOGET.  HKSTZ00000ET  HKSTDSO0000ET

Hein 24T

LMD B0 T

HODIOET  HKSHKSO.10%7 HrS0.10% 7

10 years ¥
0478%
109673%

175 jeas & 151 years £
0551% 0634%
107460% 113.37%

HSOBI00ET  HKSBO9000BT  HkS21 1650007

At
31 December 2008

R-RENE
TZA=1-A

HK$18,600,000% 0
HK$0.0557T
HKS0.1078 T
224 years £

0.526%
126.52%

HK$4,800,000% 7T

At date of
conversion on
6 May 2009
i3
B4R
ZBRA%

HK$18,600,000% 0
HKS0.128 T
HK$0.10% T
1.89 years £

0.520%
107.55%

HK$12,032,000% 7T

T-ZEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—Z4F+-A=1+—HIFE

25.

26.

CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued)

Notes:

(@) The expected life was the expected remaining life of the
respective options.

(b) The risk-free interest rate was determined by reference to
the yield of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note.

(c)  The expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over the
previous 250 days.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES DESIGNATED AS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Pursuant to a best effort basis placing agreement dated
16 June 2009 entered into between the Company and
Tanrich Capital Limited (as the placing agent) the placing
of the three-year 0.5% coupon unsecured convertible
notes in an aggregate principal amount of HK$26,200,000
was completed on 9 October 2009 and the placing of the
three-year 0.5% coupon unsecured convertible notes in
an aggregate principal amount of HK$70,000,000 was
completed on 19 January 2010. The proceeds from the
placing of the convertible notes were intended to be
deployed as debt repayment and general working capital.

On 18 December 2009, the convertible notes with
principal amount of HK$12,000,000 were converted at
the conversion price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the
issue of 120,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 29 March 2010, the convertible notes with principal
amount of HK$200,000 were converted at the conversion
price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the issue of
2,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 14 and 16 April 2010, the convertible notes with
aggregate principal amount of HK$32,500,000 were
converted at the conversion price of HK$0.10 per share,
resulting in the issue of 325,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each.

25.

26.

RBREREE (B)
B -

@ BEHEXBAEBHEIEHR
TAEM -

b) ERBANEXDZEFBIIEES
FRZBEMET

(0 FBHKEBHZ2ZEARNERZE250H
ZBEREMETE -

EERBRIVEIAERIR
ZABRKRRE

BREARBRIUTHEFR R A
(EAREERBE)R-_ZSZNEF A
TARBRIUZENRE RS BE
N4 48 %8 /526,200,0008 T 2 = F
HOS%EEERMIBBRER —
EER-_ZETNF+ANBREK
i Bt & AN & 48 %8 &70,000,0007T 2
ZFHOS%EBERIFIT LR ERE
—EER-_ZE—ZF—At+NB%
eoBRENRBRER CMERED
FEIREEER —REEES -

R-FEAF+A+TNE X%
% £12,000,00078 7T 2 Al # Ik Z 4%
BRER0.10B T 2 IR EHRAL -
A7) A It 8 17120,000,0004%
REE0. 108 T2 i o

RZE—ZF=ZA=-+hB X%
% 5200,0008 T2 AR EEE
ZREROI0E T BRERR &
A A A 1t % 172,000,0000% & A F &
0,108 T2 AR -

RZZE—ZSTFMNA+ITABE R+
H A& #% A32,500,000% T
ZUBBREECRER0.10E T
ZBBREBRE  ARA R ET
325,000,000f% F AR EI1E0.1078 7L 2
AR
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26. CONVERTIBLE NOTES DESIGNATED AS AT 26 EEARLAFEIANERRE

FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(continued)

On 4 May 2010, the convertible notes with principal
amount of HK$4,300,000 were converted at the
conversion price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the
issue of 43,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 28 June 2010, the convertible notes with principal
amount of HK$1,500,000 were converted at the
conversion price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the
issue of 15,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 15 and 29 July 2010, the convertible notes with
aggregate principal amount of HK$5,200,000 were
converted at the conversion price of HK$0.10 per share,
resulting in the issue of 52,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each.

The Group has designated these convertible notes as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
because these convertible notes meet the criteria for the
category of financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss. The movements of the convertible
notes designated as at fair value through profit or loss
during the year are as follows:

A BREE (&)

R-E—ZFRANH A8 A
4,300,000 T2 AR ERE 1%
FROI0B T BBRERRK XA
& A It % 1743,000,0000% & A% E &
0.108 T 2 EMAR

NRZEBE—ZTFSA=-+N\B X%
% /1,500,000 7T 2 AT R E &
ERFROI0BETZRREERR
A7) A It % 1715,000,0000% & A%
EE0. 108 T2 BB

RZE—ZTFLtA+HRARZ=ZTN
H:' X% %% 4520000048
ZABBEEREESR0.10%E T
ZHBRBEEBRRK  ADQAEET
52,000,000f% & fx E{E0.10/8 7T 2
LA o

ARNEFARRERETAEE /K
AFENABRGZR . EMAB IR
RIE AR - KB It F A AR
FEREER/BAFEIABZR L
THER -BERRLFEIIAR
mhk eBBERFRAZEHMT

HK$'000

THET

Principal amount of the convertible notes issued FTE TR/ R EE 2 N E 5 26,200
Conversion into shares B akH (24,908)
Interest payable JE 157 8 (27)
Fair value loss NEEEE 29,251
At 31 December 2009 R-ZZEZANFE+T-RA=+—H 30,516
Principal amount of the convertible notes issued FTEE/TRAI AR ZE 2 K& 5 70,000
Conversion into shares BB ARG (69,606)
Interest payable FEF & (257)
Fair value gain NEENE (3.823)
At 31 December 2010 R-_FB-TF+_H=1—H 26,830

T-ZFEFEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 BZ—Z— T4 +-A=+—HI-45E

26. CONVERTIBLE NOTES DESIGNATED AS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(continued)

The fair values of the convertible notes designated as
at fair value through profit or loss were determined at
the date of issue, at each conversion date and at the
end of the reporting period using the binomial model by
reference to an independent professional valuation. The
inputs into the model were as follows:

(i) Placing of the three-year 0.5% coupon unsecured
convertible notes in an aggregate principal amount of

HK$26,200,000

Convertble notes
designated as At date of At dte of
at fair value conversion on At (onversion on
through proftorloss Atdateofissue 18 December 2009 31 December 2009 29 March 2010
KRARDTE #3818 #-3-8%
HAgER 12A11R #3318 ZAZthE
PEL e 38 ZBREE  toRt-B ZERRE
Prncipalamount of

the convertoe notes

designated a5

at vl fhrough

proftoross Q60000ET  WSTL000ET  HKSIAZ000ET  HKS00000ET
Sharepice HK$U BT K028 B0 WS04
Convesson pice H§0.10% T He30.10% 7 HS0.107 HS010ET

Bectd e (ot 3) 3|8l i 281 years 177 years 193y £

Rifee nfrest rte (e () 0478% 0424% 0551% 1.189%
Eected voltity e () 102790% 103285% 103307% 102950%
Far vl of the comerson
Totes designated a5
atfr vale through 3 4]
poftorloss BRI GOOET  HSSUR00ET  HOSIGNIET  HOIAUGO00ET 3

At date of
conversion on
14 April 2010
#-8-%f
RATRR
ZERR%

Hk§1, 800,007 7
B ET
H§0.10% 7
149 yeas £

1241%
103.067%

26.

EERBAYEIARREK
A BREE (&)

T ERERATEIABRGZR 2 AT#

FEORAFE HRETEH
E’\\\%Tﬁﬂxa,ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’\ W RS RE
N—BABAEE EFC22EH
VEEME - RAZENZHE W
N

() BEXRE LE E26,200,0007T

Z=FH05%E S EEKIF T
BREE

At date of At date of At date of At date of

conversion on (onversion on conversion on Conversion on A3t

1

6 April 2010 May 2010 28 June 2010 9 hly2010  December 2010

H-§-8¢ i H-§-8% H-§-8%

L)

BATAR 1ARE FA=TAR tA=tAR o8-8
28RAR pL pLLGE 8RR toA=1-B

TOMET  HOA00ET  HKISMIET  AEODOOET  HKSSO0000E7
B0 37 Hs021ET HKS0. 7E' HeS0 1850 Hs0.128m
HKS0.10% 7 HS0107 ks He30.10% T H§0.10% 7
1y E S P ,PM 200y & 1Ty
116% 1.198% 0776% 0526% 0.58%
183.213% 1B3467% 101.033% 100.446% 9.103%
FOOET  BSTOLBO0ET  HK2604000%T Hk§867 000 HS310000% T
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZ-Z— T4 +-A=+—HI-FE

26. CONVERTIBLE NOTES DESIGNATED AS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(continued)

(i) Placing of the three-year 0.5% coupon unsecured
convertible notes in an aggregate principal amount of

HK$70,000,000 BERE
At date of At date of
Convertible notes designated conversion on conversion on At
s at fair value through profit or loss At date of issue 14 April 2010 15July 2010 31 December 2010
RZZ-%f R-g-3¢
mATEA tRtaA H-%-%%
ERARMTESABEEZTARES EGEE ZBKAS ZBRA% +Zf=1-A
Principal amount of ERBELTE
the convertble notes jINEREL
Qesignated as THERE
at far value through WAEE
profit or loss HKS70,000,000%7  HK925,000,0007  HK$5,000,000%7  HK$40,000,000%
Share price kE HK$0.245 70 HK$0.223 T HKS0.17AT HK$0.123 T
Conversion price #RE HK$0.10%8 70 HK$0.10 T HKS0.108 T HK$0.10 T
Fxpected Ife fAote (3) EEERE W0 3years & 277 years 152 years & 2,05 years
Ris-free interest ate ote (5) ERRNZ Kz 0977% 1241% 0.569% 0.586%
Expected volatty (Hote (¢) BEkEWZ0) 103.506% 104617% 102.554% 101.455%
Fair value of the convertible notes EEBRATEIA
designated as at fair value Bik 1Ak
through profit or loss SENLTR HK$130,356,0008 7T  HKS118,015,00087  HKS53,067, 000787 HK926,520,000% T
Notes: Bt -

(@) The expected life was the expected remaining life of
the respective options.

(b)  The risk-free interest rate was determined by reference
to the yield of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note.

(c) The expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over
the previous 250 days.

26. EERBDFEI ARG

A BREE (&)

(i) BEEAR4 4% A70,000,0007C
2 =FH05%Z 8 EE A

(@ BEHEXBAEBHEEBR
THEME -

b) BERRMNEXDZEZENEES
SRZBEMETE

() BEHKEHZEARRARRE20R
ZBERENEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZ =T

27. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

At 31 December 2009 and 2010

Issued and fully paid:
1 January 2009

Conversion of the Convertible
Notes in May 2009
Conversion of the Fully
Underwritten Bonds
in July 2009
Conversion of the Fully
Underwritten Bonds
in August 2009
Conversion of the Fully
Underwritten Bonds
in September 2009
Conversion of the convertible
notes designated as
at fair value through
profit or loss
in December 2009

At 31 December 2009

Conversion of the Fully

Underwritten Bonds

in March 2010
Conversion of the convertible

notes designated as

at fair value through

profit or loss in March 2010
Conversion of the convertible

notes designated as

at fair value through

profit or loss in April 2010
Conversion of the convertible

notes designated as

at fair value through

profit or loss in May 2010
Conversion of the convertible

notes designated as

at fair value through

profit or loss in June 2010
Conversion of the convertible

notes designated as

at fair value through

profit or loss in July 2010

At 31 December 2010

EE
R-EENER_F-FF
T-A=1— H

BRITRAE
m:ggni—ﬂ—a
ﬂﬁ%Tﬁﬁh

R-ZETNF+A
2AEBHEFER

TAENH
HEFAR

R_ZTNFNH
2HBHEFAR
T

R-EZNFT—A
EERERATE
JIANBEE
P ES

R-ZZ
2EE

R-BBNF+-H=1—H

R-ZE-TF=f
FHEHEFER

R-_Z—TF=
E ﬁﬁ@?f
SIA B s R
ZTﬁhTﬁﬁh
—ZFMA
?Eﬁﬁﬂ?f
SIA B
\ZjﬁhTfﬁh
—E-ZTFFHA
? ﬁﬁ@?@
SIAB &
ZTﬁhTFQh
BA 7 7&/\)%
TEEE TE
SIAB&E
Zﬂ@%%ﬁ@%
R_T—-ZF+H
EEARATE
ﬂkﬁé%
AR EX il

N-Z-FF+_-F=+—H

27. R

Notes

Mt

Number of

ordinary shares of

HK$0.10 each

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNE

—EEFT_A=+-RALFE

ZREE0.10ET Amount
LERYA 8
HK$'000

TET

5,000,000,000 500,000
1,489,788,925 148,979
186,000,000 18,600
17,500,000 1,750
65,000,000 6,500
292,500,000 29,250
120,000,000 12,000
2,170,788,925 217,079
125,000,000 12,500
2,000,000 200
325,000,000 32,500
43,000,000 4,300
15,000,000 1,500
52,000,000 5,200
2,732,788,925 273,279
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—Z4+-A=1+—HIIFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 6 May 2009, the Convertible Notes with principal
amount of HK$18,600,000 were converted at the
conversion price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the
issue of 186,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 14 July 2009, the Fully Underwritten Bonds with
principal amount of HK$1,750,000 were converted at the
conversion price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the
issue of 17,500,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 26 August 2009, the Fully Underwritten Bonds with
principal amount of HK$6,500,000 were converted at the
conversion price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the
issue of 65,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 1, 8 and 25 September 2009, the Fully Underwritten
Bonds with aggregate principal amount of HK$29,250,000
were converted at the conversion price of HK$0.10 per
share, resulting in the issue of 292,500,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each.

On 18 December 2009, the convertible notes designated as
at fair value through profit or loss with principal amount of
HK$12,000,000 were converted at the conversion price of
HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the issue of 120,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 29 March 2010, the Fully Underwritten Bonds with
principal amount of HK$12,500,000 were converted at
the conversion price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the
issue of 125,000,000 ordinary shares of the HK$0.10 each.

On 29 March 2010, the convertible notes designated as
at fair value through profit or loss with principal amount
of HK$200,000 were converted at the conversion price
of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the issue of 2,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 14 and 16 April 2010, the convertible notes designated
as at fair value through profit or loss with aggregate
principal amount of HK$32,500,000 were converted at
the conversion price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the
issue of 325,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

27. IR (48)
s

(a)

RZTBEZENFRAAA KL E
418,600,000/ 7o 2 7] 32 Jg 2= &
BIEFR0.108 T 2 AR B -
A2 A) A It 2 17186,000,0000% &
MR E0. 10/ T2 @K -

RZBEZNFELA+MA A&
% 41,750,000 7T 2 2 H £ $51E
HEHEEFR0N10BIT 2 BIKER
B& - A2 R A % 4717,500,000
% B AR E (B0.1078 T 2 LA o

R-ZTZAENR-+H K
£ % 56,500,0008 T Z 2 B
BEH DL FR0.10/8 T 2 B (E
A% - AR E A E1765,000,000
W F R EE0. 108 T 2 E@

R-ZEBEZAFAA—HBH NBE
—+HH A&4EEA29,250,000
BILZEAREEFEEER0.10
BT BREBERR - AQFE I
% 17292,500,000/% & % H {80.10
BT EBR

R-ZEZThFEF+-_A+N\H &
% %8 /312,000,000 7T 2 18 & A&
BAFEIANBREZIRRE
BERERI0BTZHEREE
%+ A2 &) A 1t 8 17120,000,000
i &I EE0.10/8 T 2 ERA% -

R-_E—ZF=F_-+hHB"
N4 %8 /4512,500,000/6 7T 2 2
BHEEFERESROI0BTLLZ
BREBRE - ARQEE T
125,000,0008% & f% E {E0.107%8 7T
ZEER

R-ZZE—ZTF=A-F+NLB &K
% %8 /5200,0008 T 2 E BZ A
TEIANBZEZITRREED
RER10B Tz BB -
AN &) A I 3 172,000,0000% & i
EE0I0B T2 E B -

RZE-—ZTFMATEA R+
H K& #% 532,500,000 T
ZETEBERAFEINIABZE
ZABRBEEERSR0.10E T
BB EBRE - AR E AT
325,000,000/% &F % E {E0.10/ T
Z LR o

T-ZFEFEH
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27.

28.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i) On 4 May 2010, the convertible notes designated as at
fair value through profit or loss with principal amount of
HK$4,300,000 were converted at the conversion price of
HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the issue of 43,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

() On 28 June 2010, the convertible notes designated as at
fair value through profit or loss with principal amount of
HK$1,500,000 were converted at the conversion price of
HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the issue of 15,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

(k) On 15 and 29 July 2010, the convertible notes designated
as at fair value through profit or loss with aggregate
principal amount of HK$5,200,000 were converted at the
conversion price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the
issue of 52,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

All the new shares issued during the years ended 31

December 2010 and 2009 ranked pari passu with the then
existing shares in all respects.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
Share option scheme

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the Company’s
shareholders at the general meeting held on 23 May
2002, the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the “2002 Scheme"), under which the Company‘s board
of directors may, at its discretion, grant options to eligible
persons (including directors and employees) to subscribe
for the Company’s shares for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and employees.

27.

28.

R (&)
Hat - (4)

) RZZE—ZFRANH AcH
/4,300,000 T 2 BT B AT
BIABEREZIBREERER
FROI0BE T 2R ERE - &
A 7 A It % 1743,000,0000% & %
EEI0B L2 E B -

) RZZE—ZTFESA-F+NB &
% %8 41,500,000/ 7T Z 5 F AR
ANFEIABERZ T EBRER
BRER010B T 2 2R ERAE -
AR F M2 4715,000,0000% &
PR EE0.10/8 T 2 E @Ak o

kK R—Z—ZF+LATAHABK
—+ B A& #%A5200,000
BLZEEARLTENABR
Rz RREERE ZER0.10E
T2 BB ERR - AR R A
752,000,000/ & A% H f£0.10/% T
ZERR .

RBEE-ZT-—ZFR-_FTENF
tZA=T-BLEEERETZHA
ARty - 9N T | R E R R D
EXNEEY: Sk

DBRGBARERZNRZRE
EREE

BEARABRENR-_ZZ_FAHA
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BHBERETS (222 2F5
8 Bt ARAEZEEUHE
AEMBERAL (BREENE
B)RTREE URBARAR
- TERNENEREENES -
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 28. LR AERB2RRZRS

(continued)

Share option scheme (continued)

The exercise price of the share options under the 2002
Scheme is determined by the directors, and must be
at least the higher of: (a) the average of the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the relevant date of offer of
the share options; (b) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheet on the relevant date of offer of the share options,
which must be a business day; and (c) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the 2002 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the Company’s shares in issue
from time to time. The total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to any individual under the 2002 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company (including
cancelled, exercised and outstanding share options) in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant of the share
options must not exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in
issue. The 2002 Scheme will remain in force for a period
of ten years commencing from the date of adoption of
the 2002 Scheme, after which no further share options
shall be granted but the share options which were granted
during the life of the 2002 Scheme may continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue and the
provisions of the 2002 Scheme shall in all other respects
remain in full force and effect in respect thereof. Share
options may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the 2002 Scheme at any time during the period as the
board of directors may determine in granting the share
options, but in any event not exceeding ten years from
the date of grant. Share options granted under the 2002
Scheme must be taken up within 30 days of the date of
offer. Upon acceptance, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant of the
share option.

(&)
BREE (&)

“ETFREZBRETEES
EFRE YARUTIRSER
£ @ERABABRER LA
IEZEXARNBIMEEHRERS
Hz AR RO FHRTE : (b)B
FABBER LD BN ME AR
BREHZARABRNKTE  Z
AUARERR  ROXRBRKRN
ZHEE-

BE-ZT-Fat a8 RARAHEM
H BB BT & P A &= R
T BB R - TR A T #T
B8 ATEREBERART
R ETRODATEN% REEE
BRERLAHZEFNT @A
AR TERE-_ST_F:HER
ZNNCIROES e - DRSO
ATETEERE(BREEHE C
T R W RATE 2 BB R HE) 31T
R TETZBRNBE  TABE
ARBEHETRMI % - —TF =
FHEBEERABBMES T FAN
REW NZBAHRATSERE
Bt R _ZT_FHEHA
R 2 B D AT AR R E AT R X
BETATE M _TT_Fira
ZREEMBELEBTEHNA
TR - BRETREZFSR
AR AR TE < IR AEMER
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 28. LR RERZARZRS
(continued) (#8)
At 31 December 2010, the number of shares in respect of E/\\\:%*%éif:ﬂ E‘l_’* AR
which share options could be exercisable under the 2002 ?E:%?:Eﬁ%ﬂﬂfgﬁzﬁ%ﬂ&
Scheme was 464,409 (2009: 1,653,136), representing REFTE 1T 2 R0 8 B 5464,4098%
approximately 0.02% (2009: 0.08%) of the Company’s (ZZTZTNF :1,653,1360%) A&
shares in issue at that date. RAEIRZ A 2 B EI1TRD 40.02%

(ZZEZTNF :0.08%) °

. . . N == kb — & __=F —
The following table discloses the details of the Company’s TEBBBRE-_FT-TF+ZA
share options and the movements during the year ended ST ALEFEARRRIZBRIE
HhEhSEE -
31 December 2010: RERNEFHFIE -
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise at  Granted  Exerdsed  Forfeited Expired at
price 1 January during during during during 31 December
Date of grant pershare  Exercise period Notes 010 theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 2010
H-g-2% H-g2-g%
-A-H t2hzt-B
ik ShRE kA M HAOE  FARE  FAGR  EARM  ERER  HAGR
HKS
iy
Directors of 25 May 2007 0.409 25 May 2007 to 24 May 2012 ) 1,188,721 - - (118870) -
the Company “ERtERA-TRA ERLERACTRAR
KhiES T-ERACTTA
1,188,721 = - (1188720) =
Other employees of 25 May 2007 0.409 25 May 2007 to 24 May 2012 @) 464,409 - - - - 464,409
the Companys ~ —SRLERA-1EA ZSTERA-TRAZ
subsidiaries ZZ-ERAZTMA
FAAHBAA
LS
Total
&t 1,653,136 - - (118872) - s
Exercisable t the end of the year 464 409
REERTFIR
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.409 - - HKS0409 - HKS0409
METHARE
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 28. LR RERZARZRS

(continued) (#8)

The following table discloses the details of the Company’s TRBEHZ-_ZEZHLhF+ A

share options and the movements during the year ended S+—BLEEEAARR ZERE

31 December 2009: REREEFE

Qutstanding Qutstanding

Exercise at Granted Exercised Forfeited Expired at

price 1 January during during during during 31 December

Date of grant pershare  Exercise period Notes 2009 the year the year the year he year 2009

RZZTNE RZZENE

-f-H +=R=1-A

k] BRARE  fifkH i RROE  EARE  EAOR EARE ERER  HAGE
HKS
A

Directors of 16 March 2004 0.976 16 March 2004 to 15 March 2009 (b) 3,368,058 - - (1122680 (2.245372) -

the Company “SEMEZATAR S ES

LN “IZNEZRTEA

25 May 2007 0.409 25 May 2007 to 24 May 2012 ) 1188727 - - - - 1188
ZRELERACTHA “SRtERACTRAZ
“I-ZERA-1RA

4,55,785 - - (1122686 (5370 1188727

Other employees of 25 May 2007 0409 25May 2007 to 24 May 2012 ) 1,554,073 - - (1,089,604) - 464,409
the Company’s “ERtERACTEA “ERLERACTRAS
subsidiaries E-ZFRAZTRA

RATHERT

LifiEs

Total

& 6,110,858 - - QN300 Q5370 1,653,136

Exercisable t the end of the year

NEERT T 1,653,136

Welghted average exercise price

MEHAERE HK$0.722 - - HKS0.697  HKS0.976  HK$0409

Notes: Bt -

(@) The share options are exercisable subject to (i) up to 50% () BREZTEAIEATRS :
of the share options are exercisable from 25 May 2007 (VEx=mE %L ERETH-F
to 24 May 2008; and (i) all remaining share options are E+FEFRA-_+tHRARE_ZZ
exercisable from 25 May 2008 to 24 May 2012. NERAZ+MA I EBARRTE

R THEBREIH-_ZZ

AN = iy o =

FRAA-TEAEHEATE-
(b) The share options may be exercised at any time from the (b) EhETHEEHAMBERHA

date of grant to their fifth anniversary of the date of grant. HAE RALF 1E 2 (RS AT o

T-ZFEFEH
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29. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 29. REHERE
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
T Fi#T

Minimum lease payments paid FARBLEHEEX M
under operating leases during ZEREMRS :

the year:

— Premises /S 3,298 1,561
The Group had commitments for future minimum lease AEERHEEMEN T FHH
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in ZIAHEEEHE BARKRE
respect of rented premises which fall due as follows: EREAEET :

2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT TET

Within one year —F R 3,241 3,512
In the second to fifth E_FEFLF

years inclusive (BREEEMTF) 4,548 7,709
Over five years HRhF 166 659

7,955 11,880




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30. SLAREE

On 28 February 2007, the Company was served with an
Amended Writ issued and filed by Uniden Corporation
("Uniden”) and Uniden Hong Kong Limited (“Uniden
HK") on 1 February 2007 against the Company, SunCorp
Partners Limited and certain of the Company’s existing and
former directors, alleging that certain misrepresentations
had been made by the Company and certain of its
existing and former directors, and that the Company had
breached the warranties of the subscription agreement,
and the terms of the business alliance agreement and
the master production agreement. On the basis of these
allegations, Uniden sought, inter alia, (i) a recession of
the subscription agreement, pursuant to which Uniden
HK acquired 82,000,000 new shares in the capital of the
Company, and the consequential return of the relevant
subscription money of approximately HK$143,500,000; (ii)
damages for misrepresentation or breach of warranty; (iii)
damages for breach of the business alliance agreement
and the master production agreement; and (iv) the legal
costs of this action, plus interest.

On 6 February 2007 and 20 March 2007, the Company
issued announcements in relation to these legal
proceedings and the termination by the Company of the
business alliance agreement and the master production
agreement. The directors of the Company strongly refute
and intend to vigorously contest the allegations made by
Uniden and Uniden HK, and are of the opinion, having
taken legal advice, that the action can be successfully
defended.

On 2 August 2007, the Company served a defense and a
counterclaim against Uniden and Uniden HK for damages
of approximately HK$354,000,000 (plus interest) based
on the breaches by Uniden and Uniden HK of the terms
of the master production agreement and the business
alliance agreement. Uniden served its reply and defence to
the counterclaim on 13 November 2007.

R-ZEE+E-_RA-+NH" K
A A7) # % ZUniden Corporation
([Uniden]) KUniden Hong Kong
Limited ([ Uniden HK ) R =T =&
tHFZA—HMRAZRAF - SunCorp
Partners Limited X N2 B1& TRE
RAFESZELERIFREIEBTE
L EBEARAREETRERA
FEFEEHAETRERL  URE
RACERREHRBECRBLS
EHEREREELHREIEK -
HERZEHEE  UnidenZB sk (B
B3E) ()85 A BUniden HKUK BB
82,000,000/ A8 2 ] iR 28 A 2 7 ik
17 2 3R B8 175 & 0 3R 101 48 7 3R B AR R
#1143,500,0007%8 7T ; (ii)#t K B B
MskiE RIRFERMLBFEE ¢ (i)st
EREEHEHBEREEBHZR
HIEZEE R(iv)EELEEART
B ERERANURTE -

i s g = I e o
FZRAZ+AH ARAIRUFEE
FARARRRIEZHERAHE
REEBHBELH QM - AARIE
FR R E R BRI EUNden &
Uniden HKER H 2 f54% » I A BEEL
FREERERREBEETHAE
DRIEAE-

RZZEZTLFNHAZR AQA
B #EUniden & Uniden HKE & £
ERMERBEBEEBZE KR
M i 2 &t WUniden X Uniden HK
ZHMBHERRBR RKRKBER
{8 #9354,000,0007%8 7T (EFI &) o
UnidenRZEZ+F+—HA+=H
REHHRARZEAERNEE

T-ZFEFEH
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30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

31.

On 31 July 2009, the Company announced that the above
legal proceedings were settled on 31 July 2009 on terms
whereby, amongst other things, (i) all claims brought by
Uniden and Uniden HK against the Company, SunCorp
Partners Limited and certain of the Company’s existing
and former directors were dismissed; (i) all claims brought
by the Company against Uniden were dismissed; (iii) no
party to the legal proceedings made any payment to any
other party to the legal proceedings; and (iv) each party
bore its own legal costs and expenses. An order formally
dismissing the Court proceedings were made by the Court
on 4 August 2009.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees.

In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in
other countries in which the Group operates, the Group
is required to operate defined contribution schemes
managed by the relevant jurisdictions and to make
contributions for its eligible employees. The contribution
borne by the Group is calculated according to the
regulations stated by the relevant jurisdictions.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2010 of approximately HK$3,617,000 (2009:
HK$3,131,000) represents contributions payable to the
above schemes by the Group.

30. RAREE (&)

31.

RZZETZNFLA=+—H A£2
AEMELMEREFELR T
TAFELtA=T—BEXRNE -
Bl BBGRA (AP BE) ()
Uniden K& Uniden HKE % A2 A »
SunCorp Partners Limited &2 ZX 2 ]
ETHERNEZEZMEL 21
BRD AR  (i)A 2 FHUniden
PTYEL 2 — R R B AR/ ¢ ()%
BRFSIEERNEEREFEMNE
5 ZAHERRIE  R(VEBEEA
BREERGZEEEARAX
ERERZZEANFNANABESE
ABEBERERRER -

BB R 8

AEERMAERBARERERIRRM
BHEATEEEE - R HEESR
AEBEEDNSFRRE  YHERE
ANEBZEEHEE - AEBRZ
ArElEHS R HEHK BER
2B D AR -

BREASEEEMECEBER
MR LR AREARLA
HMERERE R EE 2 7 E f G
2 URESEREEMHELHER -
AR B AE 2 R T IR B AR RBE BLA
BEFTEZRPIEE

RBEE-ZE—ZEF+-A=+—H
HFEEZHGRAEARERFERL
By 453,617,008 (Z2F
NEF 3,131,000 7T)  TAEE
B P Et 2N 2 K o
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. AEALR S

During the year, the Group and the Company had entered
into the following significant transactions with related

parties:

Related parties
BEAL

Guo Wei - a jointly
controlled entity
ol WN]

Shenzhen Guo Wei
(Hong Kong) Limited
— Company held by
a major shareholder
of the Company
—ARA-BRKRR
SN

At 31 December 2010, the banking facilities granted
by a bank to a subsidiary of the Group were secured

BEOZFERZFET:
Nature of transactions 2010
REME HK$°000
THER
Purchase of goods by the Group 101,781

AEBBEEEM

Sale of goods and provision of assembly
services by the Group 62,446
AEELHEEmRREMEE RS

Management fee expense
paid by the Group 1,567
AEEXNZEREBRX

Management fee income from provision of
accounting and management services
by the Group
ARERESH NEERS
ZERBIWA 249

FR AEERAAREBEAL

2009
HK$°000
TAT

2,906

48,783

1,688

7
by guarantees given by the Company, Guo Wei and a TRE  BRUAKRAR  BEEAA

director of the Company to the extent of US$2,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$15,600,000) (2009: nil).

Al — R EEREMAH2,000000%
7T (B8 N 4915,600,000% 7T) 2 &

REER(ZZENF - 8E) -

Compensation of key management personnel EBES 2 HM

The remuneration of key management personnel of the

Group during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits

Post-employment benefits

AREERZEENFAZHMMT :

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

R 2,785 1,326
BEBR 2 2 A 29 14
2,814 1,340

T-ZFEFEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—T4F+—-A=1+—HIFE

33. RESERVES
The Company

At 1 January 2009

Issue of shares upon
conversion of convertible
loan notes

Forfeiture of vested share
options

Loss for the year

At 31 December 2009

Issue of shares upon
conversion of convertible
loan notes

Forfeiture of vested share
options

Loss for the year

At 31 December 2010

33. &
NN
Share
Share  Contributed option Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
ki@ BABSR  BRERS i HE ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TR TAT TR
RZZEENE—-A—H 279,946 80,851 2,096 (611,581) (248,638)
RABREFRE
HMIRES BT
78,658 - - - 78,658
BRERE
RERE - - (1,715) 1,715 -
REEER - - - (144,199)  (144,199)
RZZZENFE+-F=+—H 358,604 80,851 381 (754,065) (314,229)
RABRETRR
HIREE TR
44,121 - - - 44,121
RUBREBRE
- - (274) 274 -
AEEER - - - (54,335) (54,335)
R-E-FF
+=-A=+—-H 402,725 80,851 107 (808,126) (324,443)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the underlying net assets of the
subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired by

the Company and the nominal value of the share capital
issued by the Company as consideration for the acquisition

at the time of a group reorganisation in a previous year.

KRABABERIE AR D R A BB AN
BRAEERBAEHZEREE
AE EARRE-BEFEENT
SEEARRBBEMBRITESNE

ZRAEEME L EZHE
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34. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(i)

(ii)

On 28 February 2011, the Company announced
that the directors proposed to implement a capital
reorganisation which will involve inter alia a reduction
in the par value of each issued share from HK$0.10 to
HK$0.0001 and a subdivision of each authorised but
unissued share into 1,000 new share of HK$0.0001
each. Such transaction has not been completed as of
the date of approval of these financial statements.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 21
March 2011, two wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company (namely, Mondial Communications Limited
and Suncorp Communications Limited) received two
notices of statutory demand from a firm of solicitors
for and acting on behalf of a former subsidiary of
the Company in liquidation, demanding for payment
of HK$91,177,872 due by Mondial Communications
Limited and HK$128,785,748 due by Suncorp
Communications Limited to the aforesaid former
subsidiary. As of the date of approval of these
financial statements, the Company is seeking legal
and professional advice and will vigorously defend
the aforesaid claims.

4. HEHBERER

(i)

(if)

RZE——F=-_RA=-+N\R"
KRR EMEZRBERRA
EHE G EESR(EPEE) &
FREBTRM 2EER0.10
B JCEIR Z20.00018 70 A R
BERETEERETRMDFA
£1,000/k & X E & /0.0001
AL R - RAMBRE
EftEER HBRXHHERT
ﬁjz o

REERE  ApRmE2E
MEBARBERBAEARA
AkFBEBABRARNR-E
——F=A=-+—BKkE—MH
EEiT(RR—FEEEBEMN
ARABRMERRTE) N
MMEZEERKEEERM
EXEERBABRDE K
BRMER QA DR L&
A Bt B 2 732 991,177,872
7T % 128,785,748 7T o AR
PHERRESLEER  ADQA
EEREEREXEATES
HERBRIEHBGRE -

T-ZFEFEH
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35. XARAEEMBRRFE
OF THE COMPANY
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully  Attributable equity
establishment ~ Form of paid share capital/ interest indirectly
Name of subsidiary and operation  legal entity registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
HRAL/ BT BRTRAR  ALAEENEZ
HEARER RiEEn EEREYA Ba /e ERAER IERH
2010 2009
HB Electronics (China) Limited British Virgin Limited US$T  100%  100% Investment holding
Islands company ordinary share
HEET (PE) ARAT ZERNES  BRLA LRRIER RERK
MONDIAL Communications Hong Kong Limited HKS2 ~ 100%  100% Inactive
Limited company ordinary shares
ERRRAARAA B ARAR LRk2ET PiER
SunCorp Communications Limited Hong Kong Limited HK$775,000  100%  100% Inactive
company ordinary shares
HK$225,000
non-voting
deferred shares
(Note (7))
MEBRERAR B ARAT LRk TER
775,000
ERREELR
225,000
(Hiii)
SunCorp Global Limited Hong Kong Limited HK$2 ~ 100%  100% Trading of Telephones
(Formerly shown as company ordinary shares
"SunCorp Information
Technologies (Asia) Limited")
MERRER A B BRAR LRR2ET et
(AR [HHEE MR
() BRAR)
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

Meizhou Guo Wei Electronics
Company Limited

BNEREFARAR

Notes:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
AMERT/ R
RiEEn

PRC

Issued and fully

Form of paid share capital/
legal entity registered capital
BRTRAR

EERRFA R/ ERER
Wholly foreign ~ HK$42,000,000

owned registered capital
enterprise
NEFARE itMER

42,000,000 7T

(i)  The deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends
or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meeting or to participate in any distribution on winding up.

(i) None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year, or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

Attributable equity
interest indirectly

35. AR A FEMBARFE (B)

held by the Company Principal activities

ARARRRRAL
BRI RR
2010 2009

100%  100%

Mt -

IERH

Design, manufacturing and
sales and provision of
assembly service of
telephones and related
products

BHENRBER LR B
REENRR R R

() BETRERETHEEERS 2
BN MERBERBTERAASR
BZEMBRRAGZBAMLLE
ZERGERELRE B
BUWEER DK ©

(i) RELRBIARFATAER F
MEBARYEBEETEMNEEES

EZRA LRAIAKE KB
ARIGUARECRENEEELT

T,

i

KEZZBER JIHEM

B QR ME KRNI

T-ZFEFEH
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
% E

RESULTS

Revenue g

Profit/(Loss) for the year AN &)k Fl,/

(B#E)
Attributable to: THIAL L :
Equity holders of KRARRA
the Company HEA
Minority interests YRR ER

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

D
cRt cRt
)
iy
o R

S

i
i
T

Net liabilities HEE

Equity attributable to AN R A

equity holders of HBEA
the Company FEfhfE s

DEB R

Minority interests

For the year ended 31 December

BZ+-A=+—HLEE

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FETT FET FAT FERT
1,765,156 1,116,279 219,863 50,450 178,700
(349,638) (385,864) 78,813 (145,475) (18,563)
(349,592) (385,809) 78,813 (145,475) (18,563)
(46) (55) — = -
(349,638) (385,864) 78,813 (145,475) (18.563)
EERAE

At 31 December

R+=-A=+—H
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FTAT FAT FETT TER
585,609 249,150 20,009 60,503 74,517
(624,769) (522,652) (143,523) (182,613) (114,700)
(39,160) (273,502) (123,514) (122,110) (40,183)
(39,324) (273,611) (123,514) (122,110) (40,183)
164 109 - - -
(39,160) (273,502) (123,514) (122,110) (40,183)



Suncorp

Suncorp Technologies Limited
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